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An Extensive Network Capturing Growing Opportunities In China

The Group's sales points span the whole nation, with footprints in all major cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,

Chongging, Tianjin, Guangzhou, Hong Kong and Macau. Such an extensive network enables the Group to
efficiently respond to customer needs and deepen its market penefration in China.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a fofal of 1,251 retail outlets, comprising 1,049 concessionary counters
and 202 retail shops in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau.
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Financial Highlights
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Corporate Information
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Directors and Board Committees
Directors
Executive Directors
CHENG Man Tai (Chairman) (resigned on 1 February 2022)
NGOK Ming Chu (Chairman)
[appointed as Chairman on 24 March 2022)*
CHENG Pik Ho liza (Chief Executive Officer)
CHENG Chuen Chuen
LU Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

LEE Kwan Hung (alics, Eddie Lee)
EET. S. (alias, Lee Tien-sheng)

Board Committees

Audit Committee

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau) (Chairman)
LEE Kwan Hung (alias, Eddie Lee)

LEE T. S. [alias, lee Tien-sheng)

Remuneration Committee

LEE Kwan Hung (alias, Eddie lee) (Chairman)
CHENG Pik Ho Lliza

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

EET. S. (alias, Lee Tiensheng)

Nomination Committee

EET. S. [clias, Lee Tiensheng) (Chairman)
CHENG Pik Ho Liza

LAU Siu Ki (alias, Kevin Lau)

LEE Kwan Hung (alias, Eddie lee)

Compliance Officer
CHUNG King Yeung

Company Secretary
SO Ka Man

Registered Office

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Crand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lslands

Head Office and Principal Place
of Business

7th Floor, VWyler Centre |l

200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung, New Territories

Hong Kong

* with effect from the conclusion of the meeting of the Board on

24 March 2022 approving the annual results of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Principal Bankers

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
HSBC Bank (China) Company Limited

Bank of China Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

Legal Adyvisers
As to Hong Kong law:
Chiu & Partners

As to PRC law:

GFE Law Office
Grandall Law Firm (Jinan)
Zhong Lun Law Firm

Auditor

Emst & Young
Certified Public Accountants and
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Share Registrars
Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office

in the Cayman Islands
Suntera (Cayman) Limited
Suite 3204, Unit 2A
Block 3, Building D
P.O. Box 1586
Gardenia Court
Camana Bay
Grand Cayman KY1-1100

Cayman Islands

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in Hong Kong

Tricor Investor Services Limited
level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen'’s Road East
Hong Kong

Investor Relations
iPR Ogilvy Limited

Website

www.embrygroup.com
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1388
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Optimise the omni-channel coverage and improve
‘operational efficiency of the sales network
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Chairman’s Statement

BRI

Utilise the resources allocation advantages of the

Self-production and

Sales model

to enhance productivity
and supply chain efficiency

saen H FE H 3H B 3\

A9 & 5 ol C 1 3 0 R TH AR E T B A3 A A

To All Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present the audited annual results of Embry
Holdings Limited for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“"the

Current Year") on behalf of the Board of Directors.

In 2021, mass vaccination helped the world combat the novel
coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, but the frequent emergence of
coronavirus variants has dealt a setback fo the global fight against
the pandemic. In the face of the volafile epidemic situation, China’s
gross domestic product (GDP) grew 8.1% year-on-year and
exceeded RMB110 frillion. Although the overall economy continued
fo recover sfeadily, the economic growth rate slowed down quarter
by quarter and demonstrated a low-tomedium growth in the fourth
quarter. Sporadic outbreaks continued fo disrupt business operations
and economic activities, which led to the recurrence of weak
domestic consumption. Consumers remained cautious amid the
sluggish retail sentiment, placing operating pressure on the entire
underwear industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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With the upgrading of domestic consumption and the change of
consumer behaviour, the importance of market segmentation has
become increasingly apparent. In particular, ecommerce platforms
are becoming more mature and sales channels are increasingly
diversified, which intensify competition in the indusfry. Notwithstanding
that the market sentiment of the underwear industry remained
sluggish during the year, the Group leveraged its multibrand strategy
and maintained its brand influence and market share. The Group
has also adjusted its marketing strategy in a timely manner in
accordance with the changes in the business environment, and
strengthened the different positioning of ifs various brands fo target
the segmented markets, catering for the needs and preferences of
different customer groups. The Group operates a total of seven
brands, including flagship brands EMBRY FORM and FANDECIE,
functional brand COMFIT, online brand E-BRA, men's underwear
brand IVU, offline wholesale brand IADORE and luxury brand LIZA
CHENG.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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In order to keep up with the industry trends and improve the overall
operational efficiency of the sales network, the Group has increased
its investment in developing the online shopping marketf, and
strengthened the development of e-commerce exclusive products.
The Group launched the “mirror store” concept to realise online and
offline collaborative sharing and mutual traffic empowerment of the
two platforms, creating a closed-loop operation. In 2021, the
Group further adjusted its sales network, with a net decrease of 147
retail outlets, sfill covering more than 380 cities in China and
maintained 1,251 refail outlets with higher sales efficiency. The
Group appropriately adjusted the proportion of online and offline
sales distribution by relocating or closing low-efficiency stores, and
opfimised the omni-channel coverage of its sales network.

During the year, the Group's turnover was HK$1,652,408,000,
gross profit was approximately HK$1,205,702,000 with a gross
profit margin at 72.97%. Loss affributable to owners of the Company
was approximately HK$27,485,000.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend with a view fo preserving cash for the longterm financial
health of the Group.

Llooking ahead to 2022, China’s overall macroeconomic policy is
likely to be eased, and the overall economy is anficipated to
advance in a steady manner. In the post-pandemic economy, it is
expected that consumer confidence will only fully recover after a
certain period of time, the downtum in the retail market, especially
the underwear market, will prolong, and the underwear industry in
China is still facing immense challenges.

In an environment where challenges and opportunities coexist, retail
companies must sfay alert o market changes and respond flexibly o
changing conditions. The Group will observe the market situation
and sfrive to consolidate ifs strengths, implement the multi-brand
strategy, and timely adjust the resource allocation of each brand
according fo consumer needs. The Group will continue fo conduct
independent research and development, upgrade product designs
and look for suitable materials to satisfy the latest consumer needs
for underwear products. During the year, the Group has focused on
upgrading its production technology for its research and
development and strived to enhance production efficiency and
supply chain operational efficiency. With a solid foundation of self-
development capabilities and persistence in providing high-quality

Embry Holdings Limited 21551 BRAT / Annual Report F3R 2021
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

B R A XC )

products, the Group is committed to securing a leading position in
the infensely competitive market. In the future, the Group will pay
close attention to market trends, capitalise on the changes in
consumer demand, and integrate and optimise online and offline
omni-channel sales, further consolidating the brand image and
markef share.

The Group will adhere to prudent principle when planning
production capacity, with the long-term goal of improving
operational efficiency, and capitalise on the resource allocation
advantages of the self-production and sales model to strike a
balance between maximising the production, logistics and sales
system efficiency and inventory levels. The Group will fully harness
the logistics support of the infelligent finished goods and materials
warehouses in the production base in Jinan, Shandong Province fo
enhance productivity and supply chain efficiency, thereby
responding to market demand more quickly.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board of Directors
and all our employees for their contribution and efforts made during
the year filled with challenges. | would also like to express my
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for their frust and
support. Being advanced in age, | resigned as Chairman in early
2022 and would be engaged as a consultant. The new Chairman,
Madam Ngok Ming Chu will accompany all of you in the upcoming
journey. It has been incredible to witness the Company’s growth
step by step with you all and | hope that you will fully support
Madam Ngok and keep going hand in hand with the Group. | am
confident that under the leadership of the new Chairman, the Group
will make its best endeavours to create greater values for its
shareholders, customers, employees and business partners, stepping
forward to a brighter future together.

Cheng Man Tai*

Chairman

After the end of the reporting period, Mr. Cheng Man Tai has resigned from the
positions of Chairman and Executive Director with effect from 1 February 2022,
and Madam Ngok Ming Chu has been appointed as the Chairman with effect
from the conclusion of the meeting of the Board on 24 March 2022 approving
the annual results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BT I% L RFFEFMAL - K2R > EEREY)
FOEThHEM > IBEHEFRNE > BB
AR LR TRREHE » BEZERBTR K
HIHDER °

EREREELFRRTERRR > LURAE
BumAaRMAER  NABEBHEEANER
ARED > BEE MRKHERBNNm R
RICEEFKFZEES T > RO H AW
REAEMEEEMNEEILREENEEYE
ERNYIRERE » RALERRRMEEN
M ERRM O ETHIHEK ©

SAZLERORFEETEREMNE T EELE
MHN—FEFRNER NS > BRUBSKRER
EEBHHAERNEERST - HRNESE
2 RAABRIE__FEYRETRE—H
IR E T ARETRAR] o 3 NERMETE > BB
FRERHRL LEESAATT c AABZEES
BEHREMNRBEATN—FT IR FES
MERNSIFER T #HERAEREFH
T REEMETENEET  ZHFTEELA
BEILE > BRENFE - BT REERMYT
AERENEE > EREBHFEMIRK

7 6o
TE

* REPERE > BERAELEERTETIERRTESH
i 2B "F-F—HEEN > MEARLLE
ZERER > B-ERTF=-B T THEMILERR
ABE—Z _—F+-A-t+—HLEFERFXEM
BOZEETGREREER -

Annual Report %R 2021 / Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 122 H RAF]

11



Leverage on

In-house R&D
Capabilities

and strong commitment to quality

to upgrade production technology
and product designs
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Monagement Discussion and Analysis
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Business and Operations Review

In 2021, the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic has not yet subsided.
While mass vaccination has helped to contain the pandemic
worldwide, the virus has mutated frequently. Despite the ups and downs
of the pandemic, China’s economic development and pandemic control
have maintained a leading position in the world. In 2021, China’s
gross domestic product (GDP) grew by 8.1% yearon-year, achieving
the annual economic development target of over 6%. The overall
economy continued fo recover steadily, but the quarteron-quarter growth
rate was lower, especially in the fourth quarter, which showed a low-to-
moderate growth rate of 4%.

The consumer market maintained a moderate recovery in the first half of
2021. However, in the second half of the year, multiple resurgence of
the COVID-19 pandemic, the catastrophic flood in Henan in July, the
debt crisis of the Chinese property industry in the fourth quarter, the
ongoing ftrade war between the United States and China and other
factors led to a weak domestic consumption again. Under the low base
effect in 2020, ftotal refail sales of consumer goods in China grew by
12.5% in 2021. Considering the 3.9% decline in relevant data
recorded in 2020, the recovery of consumption in 2021 was
significantly slower. Consumers maintained a cautious consumption
attitude and pursued products with great discounts and high price-
performance value amid the sluggish consumer demand. Hence, the
pressure on gross profit of the underwear industry in China has not
decreased, and the overall growth of the industry was sfill hindered.

U J ‘l‘"';t'avdli'll }
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B Mg 5t e B o B ()

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Current Year”), the
Group's revenue was HK$1,652,408,000, which was basically
unchanged from that of the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
"Prior Year”). Gross profit margin slightly increased by 1.33
percentage points to 72.97%. In response to the postpandemic
refail environment, the Group resumed normal operations in the
Current Year by investing certain resources for decoration and
advertisement, meanwhile a series of cost control measures
continued to be implemented. The overall selling, distribution
expenses and administrative expenses decreased as compared
with those before the pandemic, but these expenses recorded a
yearonyear increase. Therefore, losses increased as the revenue
was basically unchanged from that of the Prior Year. During the
Current Year, loss attributable to owners of the Company
increased to HK$27,485,000 as compared to the Prior Year.
This includes a provision for impairment of rightof-use assets
amounted to approximately HK$25,777,000. Loss per share was
HK6.51 cents (2020: loss per share of HKO.67 cents).

In view of the current COVID-19 pandemic and poor consumer
sentiment causing uncerfainties in the future, the board of directors
has resolved not to recommend the payment of the final dividend.
The Company believes that this measure is a prudent and
responsible means of preserving cash for the longterm financial
health of the Group.

BE_S_—F+_RBA=1T—HLFE(EXFE)  FEEKZH1,652,4080008x BT _FTF+_H
=+—HLEFE ((EFE) BEAFT ) EFEEMEFA1.33EEREE/2.97% c REFEBETNTEIRE
EENAFEREERTCES  BERABRTRENESS  BILRREBEET ERMAEITRN 0 Bl
& DR AT BYE ISR Nk 0 BRLES LA > ARl mE FEERLEEATT  EREREM - &
FERAABDHEB ANBILEGEER EFEEAE2/,485000%8 7T > WHAEEGRAESERBERHEN25,777,000%#
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N\onagement Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Brand management

In 2021, the Group continued to make good use of its multi-brand
strategy and timely adjusted sales and marketing arrangements in
line with changes in the market environment for its seven brands,
namely EMBRY FORM, FANDECIE, COMFIT, E-BRA, IVU, IADORE
and LIZA CHENG. While consolidating its two flagship brands
which contributed the maijority of sales (i.e. EMBRY FORM and
FANDECIE), the Group continued to maintain its brand influence and
market share by strengthening its various brands with different
positioning in view of the segmented market to fulfil the needs and
preferences of varying customer groups.

In terms of brand promotion, the Group resumed investment in
markefing and promotion in 2021 to maintain brand exposure. The
Group collaborated with international luxury product designers to
launch a crossover collection and held a nationwide tour of pop-up
sfores in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenyang, Nanning and Shenzhen
under the theme of “Tribute to the Classics (£ & #% #)". The
combination of haute couture artistic designs and the Group's
exquisite craftsmanship enhanced the elegant and classic image of
the Group's brands and successfully increased consumer buzz. The
Group has been deeply integrated with China's underwear fashion
industry for many years. In April 2021, the Group participated in
the 2021 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair (F7
B (2% I B B o B2 W 1K &), affracting many consumers by the
dreamy exhibition layout. The patented technology displayed was
also recognized by experienced practitioners. Meanwhile, the
Group contfinued fo sponsor the “Charming Oriental China
Infernational Underwear Creative Design Competition 2021 (2021
ik DR 5 R EE PR X Bl B & 5t K &) and the "8th SIUF
Infernational Supermodel Contest (SIUF B FREBHE A E )", hoping fo
contribute fo the innovation development and talent cultivation of the
industry and society.

In terms of brand layout, to cope with the changing consumer habits
and the increasingly mature e<commerce environment, the Group
fully grasped the model of transferring online traffic of social media
platforms to actual sales and enhanced the development of lingerie
styles exclusively for ecommerce. Through cooperation with online
opinion leaders, the Group increased ifs online brand exposure by
soft promotions and interacted with its customer base in a more
personalized manner.
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Sales network

The Group further opfimised its sales network in 2021. As of 31
December 2021, the Group had 1,251 refail outlets in tofal,
including 1,049 concessionary counters and 202 retail stores.
During the Current Year, the Group recorded a net decrease of 147
refail outlets. To enhance the overall operational efficiency of the
sales network, the Group stepped up efforts to develop the online
market, relocated or closed stores with lower efficiency and
appropriately adjusted the proportion of online and offline sales o
optimise its omni-channel coverage.

During the Current Year, the Group operated online mirror stores
with product information synchronised directly with the offline refail
stores, initially achieving online and offline collaboration. It
eliminates competition between physical stores and online stores,
and also provides a convenient alternative consumption channel,
realising mutual empowerment of the two platforms to aftract traffic,
creafing a closed loop of operation and optimising deployment of
store invenfory and inventory management.

Product design, research and development

The Group has always put “customer experience” first and fully
understands the importance of adhering to excellent product quality
and comfortable wearing experience. The Group continued to
upgrade product designs and source the right materials to meet
consumers’ demand for lightweight lingerie products. With a solid
foundation of in-house research and development capabilities and a
strong commitment to quality, the Group focused its research and
development efforts on upgrading production fechnology during the
year, striving fo improve production efficiency and the operational
efficiency of ifs supply chain in order to maintain ifs leading position
in the highly competitive market.

During the Current Year, the Group launched various popular new
collections, including EMBRY FORM's "Featherlight (88 J- 48 £ )";
FANDECIE's " Cute Cat (P& 1% 85 88)"; COMFITs "Comly (&7 =",
LIZA CHENG's "Wedding Dress (8 7X)"; E-BRA's "Pleasant Smile
(1R €)"; IADORE's "little love Song 2021 (2021 /)\f&#1)"; IVU's
"Perfect Score (MmN %5!)".

In 2021, the Group obtfained @ new patents, including 3 utility
model patents and ¢ appearance design patents. As af 31
December 2021, the Group had 11 invention patents, 56 utility
model pafents and 24 appearance design patenfs.
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Production capacity

The refail consumer market turned sharply in the second half of the
year. Under the influence of COVID-19 pandemic and the
slowdown in economic growth, consumer sentiment was sluggish.
Consumers remained cautious on the consumption of underwear
products and inclined to purchase discounted items. The Group's
production capacity has resumed normal, and the Group sfill reviews
the production situation from time to time and carefully observes the
sales situation in different market segments and adjusts production
volume. leveraging on its self-production and self-marketing
advantages, the Group copes with market changes by prompily
deploying manpower and machine production capacity to
implement flexible production.

The Group continues to utilise the infelligent finished goods and
materials warehouses at its production base in Jinan, Shandong
Province fo enhance supply chain efficiency.

Human resources

During the year, employees of the Group worked on normal
schedule. Employees are one of the cornerstones of the Group's
operations. On the one hand, the Group frained its employees and
improved their welfare, reviewed the internal management culture
from time to time and enhanced the sense of belonging of
employees. On the other hand, the Group improved production
technology fogether with the utilisation of automated logistics sysfem,
improved the workflow of employees and raised production
efficiency, to mitigate the overall cost increase pressure and improve
operational efficiency. In response to the pandemic resurgence, the
Croup encouraged and supported ifs employees o “celebrate the
Chinese New Year in place” and provided care and assistance.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of employees of the Group
was approximately 5,154 (2020: approximately 5,455). Total staff
costs [including wages and basic salaries, commissions, bonuses,
contributions to the retirement benefits scheme and excluding
directors’ and chief executive’s remunerations) for the Current Year
was HK$538,719,000, increased by 13.47% yearon-year (2020:
HK$474,759,000).
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Financial Review

Revenue

During the Current Year, revenue was HK$1,652,408,000,
representing a slight increase of 0.12% from the Prior Year, mainly
affributable to the fact that the global economic environment was still
affected by the pandemic, resulting in weak domestic demand in
China and sluggish refail sentiment in the industry, failing fo stimulate
consumption fo return to pre-pandemic levels. Consumers remained
cautious on the consumption of underwear.

During the Current Year, revenue from retail sales was
HK$1,225,393,000, accounting for 74.16% of the Group's total
revenue and representing an increase of 1.84% from the Prior Year.
In the first half of the year, the consumer market showed a moderate
recovery with a yearonyear increase in refail sales but a decrease
in sales on its ecommerce platform. This was mainly attributable to
some consumers refurned to physical stores for consumption as the
pandemic eased and sales figures on e-commerce platform
gradually returned to normal as compared to the high base of the
Prior Year. However, with the pandemic resurgence in the second
half of the year, the Group recorded a yearon-year decrease in
retail sales. With changes in consumer behaviour and online
shopping becoming a major trend, the Group will contfinue to
develop its ecommerce business. Revenue from e-commerce business
for the Current Year was approximately HK$360,282,000,
accounting for 21.80% of the total revenue. The Group also adheres
fo its direct operation to realise mutual empowerment of the two
platforms to affract traffic.
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The Mainland China market is the main source of income for the
Group. During the Current Year, revenue from the Mainland China
market was HK$1,602,751,000, accounting for 97.00% of the

Group's fofal revenue.

Among the seven brands operated by the Group, EMBRY FORM
and FANDECIE are the main sources of income for the Group and
their contributions to the tofal revenue amounted to 49.58% and
20.67%. EMBRY FORM's revenue amounted to HK$819,193,000,
which increased by 7.13% from the Prior Year. FANDECIE's revenue
amounted fo HK$341,477,000, which decreased by 8.96% from
the Prior Year. The other brands E-BRA, COMFIT, IVU, IADORE and
LIZA CHENG's revenue for the Current Year amounted fo
HK$487,249,000, accounting for 29.49% of the overall revenue.
The percentage changes in the brands were similar to that of the
overall sales. The decline was mainly due to the impact of the
pandemic resurgence on the macroeconomic environment in the
second half of the year together with sluggish retail sales resulting
from uncertainties in the global macroeconomic environment and the
fact that consumers remain cautious on the consumption of
underwear.

Lingerie continues to be the core product line of the Group. During
the Current Year, sales of lingerie decreased by 0.70% over the
Prior Year to HK$1,425,878,000, accounting for 86.29% of the
total revenue of the Group. Sales of sleepwear amounted to
HK$159,834,000, accounting for 9.67% of the total revenue of
the Group, while sales of swimwear amounted to HK$47,174,000,
accounting for 2.85% of the total revenue of the Group.

Gross profit

During the Current Year, the Group recorded a gross profit of
approximately HK$1,205,702,000, representing an increase of
1.96% from the Prior Year. Gross profit margin slightly increased by
1.33 percentage points over the Prior Year to 72.97%.

Other income and gains

Other income increased by 6.03% to HK$75,797,000 for the
Current Year (2020: HK$71,485,000), mainly due to the increase
in fair value of investment properties of HK$3,072,000. Besides,
other income and gains were mainly subsidies received by the
Group from the local municipal government of approximately
HK$37,586,000 and rental income of approximately
HK$18,912,000.
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Operating expenses

During the Current Year, selling and distribution expenses increased
by 10.73% to HK$1,061,332,000 (2020: HK$958,518,000,
accounting for 64.23% (2020: 58.07%) of the Group's revenue. In
the face of post-pandemic market, the Group's operation and
resource allocation basically refurned to normal for the Current Year,
including moderate increase in renovation expenses and other
expenses such as advertising, resulting in an increase in expenses as
compared to the Prior Year.

Administrative expenses increased by 9.62% over the Prior Year fo
HK$ 189,460,000, accounting for 11.47% (2020: 10.47%) of the

Group's revenue.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and other expenses

During the Current Year, impairment of rightofuse assets and other
expenses [the "Non-Operating Expenses”] amounted to
HK$36,879,000, mainly due to a provision for impairment of right-
ofuse assets of refail stores of approximately HK$25,777,000 as a
result of the weak sales performance of the Group's retail stores due
to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Loss

loss atfributable to owners of the Company was HK$27,485,000
for the Current Year, while loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the Prior Year was HK$2,824,000. The increase in
net loss was mainly attributable to the slower revenue growth rafe as
compared with that of the increase in selling and distribution
expenses. During the Current Year, the Group attempted to
strengthen its advertising and retail outlet decoration efforts as a
means fo capture market opportunities brought by the expected
normalisation of market demand in the second half of 2021.
However, there was a weaker than expected consumer sentiment in
the retail market in China during the second half of 2021 which
was brought by, among others, the resurgence of COVID-19.
Therefore, despite the overall sales of the Group during the Current
Year remained stable as compared to the corresponding period last
year, the Group's net loss attributable to owners of the Company for
the Current Year increased as compared tfo the same period last
year. After excluding the Non-Operating Expenses, the profit
attributable to owners of the Company was HK$9,394,000, a
decrease of 88.20% from HK$79,635,000 in the previous year.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group finances its operations mainly with internally generated
cash flows. Financial position of the Group remained sound and
healthy during the Current Year. As at 31 December 2021, the
Croup's cash and cash equivalents amounted fo approximately
HK$378,636,000 (2020: HK$425,149,000). As of 31
December 2021, the Group's interestbearing bank borrowings
amounted to HK$346,482,000 (2020: HK$464,416,000). As at
31 December 2021, equity attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$2,516,273,000 (2020: HK$2,488,389,000). The
gearing ratio of the Group was approximately 13.77% (2020:
18.66%).

Capital expenditure

During the Current Year, the capital expenditure of the Group
amounted to HK$11,230,000 (2020: HK$36,986,000), which
was mainly used for Group's furniture, fixtures and office equipment.
As at 31 December 2021, the capital commitments of the Group
amounted to HK$117,764,000 (2020: HK$117,213,000),
which were contracted but not provided for in the financial
statements.

Charge on the Group's assets

During the Current Year, the Group pledged Hong Kong investment
properties, buildings and rightofuse assets with net book values of
HK$91,000,000, HK$2,613,000 and HK$12,214,000
respectively fo banks to finance loans.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2021, the total issued share capital of the
Company was HK$4,224,000 (2020: HK$4,224,000),
comprising 422,417,000 (2020: 422,417,000) ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each.

Significant investment held, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies

During the Current Year, the Group was neither involved in any
significant investment, nor any material acquisitions or disposals of
any subsidiaries or associated companies.
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Foreign currency exposure

The Group carries out ifs fransactions mainly in Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not use derivative financial
insfruments to protect against the volatility associated with foreign
currency transactions and other financial assets and liabilities
created in the ordinary course of the business.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, bank guarantees given in lieu of the
Croup's property rental deposits and utility deposits amounted fo
HK$ 184,000 (2020: HK$751,000). Save as disclosed above,
the Group had no other significant contingent liabilities, nor any
litigation or arbitration of material importance.

Prospect

Looking ahead to 2022, the World Health Organization has called
for an end to the global COVID-19 pandemic. Under the national
policy of "dynamic zero-infection” of pandemic prevention and
confrol, it is expected that the threat of COVID-19 will be gradually
eliminated. Life is likely to resume to normal in most parts of the
world, or at least a “post-pandemic routine” will be formed. In
2022, China's overall economic policy will be relaxed, however,
the downward pressure on consumption has increased since the
fourth quarter of last year, and the consumption industry is sfill facing
considerable pressure this year. The government is actively
coordinating the prevention and control of the epidemic and
fostering consumption, promoting the continuous recovery and
upgrading of consumption.

As consumption is still conservative towards underwear products, the
Group will adopt a prudent approach and closely monitor market
frends to make appropriate decisions in terms of product design,
production technology, marketing and sales channels according to
consumer needs and preferences. Leveraging on years of experience
and brand strength accumulated in the lingerie indusfry in China as
well as flexibility, the Group is confident that it can cope with the
present changing economic environment.
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The Group will continue to review and adjust its business strategy in
a timely manner. The Group is committed fo fortifying its strengths,
maintaining its competitiveness and tackling challenges in a
pragmatic and determined manner. Under the post-pandemic
economy, the Group expects that it will still take some time for the
market fo fully recover. The Group will continue to implement ifs
multibrand strategy based on consumer and market demand-centric
sales strategies to keep abreast of the changes in domestic
consumption patterns. The Group will conduct online marketing in
line with market preferences, fully grasping the favourable conditions
of e-commerce platforms and the growth potential of online
shopping. Meanwhile, regarding production capability, the Group
will respond more promptly, leverage on the advantages of resource
deployment through its self-production and self-marketing model as
well as the logistics ancillary facilities of intelligent finished goods
and materials warehouses to enhance production efficiency and
delivery efficiency, and actively optimise its supply chain to respond
to market demands.

Adhering to the commitment to quality, the Group will confinue fo
adopt a flexible and effective multi-brand strategy to respond to the
ever-changing market and strive to create long-tferm value for
shareholders through prudent and effective allocation of resources.
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®  According fo the national refail consumption survey results released by China General Chamber of Commerce and
the China National Commercial Information Centre in 2021, EMBRY FORM lingerie ranked top three in 2020 in
terms of composite market share in similar products in the industry, and ranked first in 2020 in terms of
composite market share with respect to group sales in similar products in the industry

®  Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was granted the awards of National Excellent Enterprise with Foreign Investment -
Excellent Tax Payment and Turnover (2020), Quality Progress (2020-2021) and Harmonious Labour
Relationship Promotion (2020-2021) by the China Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment and Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment

®  Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was named by the National Technical Committee on Garment Standardization in
China as a Leading Entity of Standardization Work in 2020

®  Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded a plaque of recognition by the Knitwear Branch of National Technical
Committee on Textile Standardization and the Sportswear Branch of National Technical Committee on Sports Goods
Standardization in China as a Leading Entity of Standardization Work in 2021

®  Embry (China) Garments Ltd. was awarded certificates of Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Product and
Service Quality and Enterprise of Leading Quality in the Underwear Industry by the China Association for Quality
Inspection

®  Embry (Changzhou) Garments Ltd., Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited and Embry (Shanghai) Company
Limited received award certificates of Exemplary Enterprise of Integrity in Quality and Enterprise of Leading
Quality in the Underwear Industry from the China Association for Quality Inspection
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®  Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was named by the Department of Industry and Information Technology in
Shandong as a Green Factory in the province

®  Embry (Shandong) Garments Limited was granted the Special Contribution Award (2016-2020) by the Shandong
Textile and Garment Industry Association

®  Embry (Shanghai) Company Limited was accredited as the Top 100 Garment Enterprises in China (2020) by the
China National Garment Association

®  EMBRY FORM was granted the Ingenuity Quality Award and Charity Award of China’s Underwear Industry
(2020-2021) ot the 2021 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

®  FANDECIE, COMFIT and IVU were granted the Emerging Brand Award of China’s Underwear Indusiry (2020-
2021) at the 2021 China [Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

®  COMFIT and E-BRA were granted the Innovative Brand Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2020-2021) ot
the 2021 China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

®  LIZA CHENG was granted the Ingenuity Quality Award of China’s Underwear Industry (2020-2021) at the 2021
China (Shenzhen) International Brand Underwear Fair

®  EMBRY FORM received the Hong Kong Top Brand (2007-2021) award from the Hong Kong Brand Development
Council and The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

®  EMBRY FORM was awarded the Quality Tourism Services Scheme Cerification Mark by the Hong Kong Tourism Board

®  Embry (H.K.) Limited was accredited by The Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority as a Good MPF Employer
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Directors and Senior ManagemenT

o 9B 2R B

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai, aged 92, is the founder of the Group. He
resigned as an Executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company effective from 1
Group's corporate strategy during his tenure as an Executive
Director. Mr. Cheng has been engaged as a consultant of the
Company fo advise on sfrategic planning and business development
of the Group after his resignation. He has over 46 years of
experience in the lingerie industry. Mr. Cheng graduated from
Beijing Agricultural Engineering University (now known as China
Agricultural University) with a Bachelor's degree. He is an Honorary
Professor of China Agricultural University. Mr. Cheng obtained the
World Outstanding Chinese Award in July 2006. Mr. Cheng is also
a shareholder and director of Harmonious World Limited (a
substantial shareholder of the Company), the spouse of Madam
Ngok Ming Chu (an Executive Director of the Company) and the
father of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza (an Executive Director of the
Company) and Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen [an Executive Director of
the Company).

February 2022. He was in charge of the

Madam Ngok Ming Chu, aged 85, is an Executive Direcfor and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Ngok
served as Chairman of the Company from March 2014 to August
2018 and has been appointed as Chairman of the Company with
effect from the conclusion of the meeting of the Board on 24 March
2022 approving the annual results of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Madam Ngok is in charge of the
Group's business planning. She joined the Group in 1980 and has
over 41 years of experience in the lingerie industry. Madam Ngok
graduated from and is currently an Honorary Professor of Beijing
Agricultural Engineering University [now known as China Agricultural
University). She is also a shareholder and director of Harmonious
World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company), the
spouse of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), the mother of Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza (an Executive
Director of the Company) and the step-mother of Mr. Cheng Chuen
Chuen (an Executive Director of the Company).
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Directors and Senior I\/\anagement (Continued)

M RRREIE )

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, aged 59, is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, an Executive Director and a member of both the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Cheng is responsible for the dayto-day management
of the businesses of the Group. Ms. Cheng joined the Group in
1993 and has over 29 years of experience in the lingerie industry.
She obtained a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from
the University of Southern California and a Master of Business
Administration (Executive] degree from the City University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Cheng was awarded the prize for Young Industrialist in
Hong Kong in 1999 and obtained the World Outstanding Chinese
Award in March 2009. Furthermore, Ms. Cheng was elected as the
Honorary Lifetime President of Shenzhen Underwear Association in
March 2021. She is currently a member of the Yangpu Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in
Shanghai, a member of the China National Textile and Apparel
Council, a Vice Chairman of China Knitting Industrial Association, a
specially invited Vice President of the China Association for Quality
Inspection, a Vice Chairman of Shanghai Garment Trade
Association and a Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Textiles Limited. Ms. Cheng is also a director of
Harmonious World Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company), the daughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai [a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and Madam Ngok Ming Chu (an
Executive Director of the Company), and the younger sister of Mr.
Cheng Chuen Chuen [an Executive Director of the Company).

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, aged 72, is an Executive Director of the
Company and currently the Assistant General Manager (Research
and Development) of Embry (China) Garments Lid. He first joined the
Group in May 2005 and has rejoined the Group since April 2017
He is also a director of Changzhou Duosiwei Fumiture Decoration
Construction Co., ltd. He is in charge of the research and
development centre of the Group and is responsible for innovations
of technologies, processes and equipment for the production of
products. Mr. Cheng has over 25 years of experience in
technological research and development in the manufacturing of
display furniture, display dummies and also garment processing. Mr.
Cheng is the son of Mr. Cheng Man Tai (a substantial shareholder
of the Company), the step-son of Madam Ngok Ming Chu (an
Executive Director of the Company) and an elder brother of Ms.
Cheng Pik Ho Liza (an Executive Director of the Company).
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

M RRREIE )

Ms. Lu Qun, aged 68, is an Executive Director of the Company and
currently the Assistant General Manager (Strategic Management) of
Embry (China) Garments lid. and the General Manager of Embry
(Shandong) Garments Limited. She is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Lu is responsible for the functions
of strategic management and project management in Mainland
China. She joined the Group in April 2003 and has over 42 years
of experience in management and administration. Ms. Lu obtained
a Master's degree in Business Administration from Beihang University
(previously known as Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics), the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), in 2001.
She has also obtained an undergraduate diploma in international
frade from the University of Infernational Business and Economics,
the PRC, in 1992. Ms. lu complefed a senior managers’ human
resources management fraining course held by Tsinghua University,
the PRC, in 2006. She has obtained the International Project
Management Professional Certification since 2002.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Siu Ki, alias, Kevin Lau, aged 63, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of both the Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lau is currently running his own
management consultancy firm, Hin Yan Consultants Limited. Mr. Lau
has previously worked at an international accounting firm for over
15 years. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now
known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1981. Mr. Lau
is a fellow member of both the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants ["ACCA”") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He was a member of the worldwide Council of
ACCA from May 2002 to September 2011
company secretary of Yeebo (International Holdings) limited, Hung
Fook Tong Group Holdings Limited and Expert Systems Holdings
Limited, and an independent non-executive director of Binhai
Investment Company Limited, Comba Telecom Systems Holdings
Limited, FIH Mobile Limited, Samson Holding lid., TCL Electronics
Holdings Limited and IVD Medical Holding Limited, the shares of
which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange”). Mr. lau joined the Company in November
2006.

. Mr. lau is currently the
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Directors and Senior I\/\anagement (Continued)

M RRREIE )

Mr. Lee Kwan Hung, dlias, Eddie Lee, aged 56, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of both the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. lee is a consultant of
Howse Williams. He received his LL.B (Honours) degree and
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from the University of Hong Kong in
1988 and 1989 respectively. He was then admitted as a solicitor
in Hong Kong in 1991 and in England and Wales in 1997. Mr.
lee is currently an independent non-executive director of NetDragon
Websoft Holdings Limited, Newton Resources Lid, Tenfu (Cayman)
Holdings Company Limited, Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
lid., Glory Sun Financial Group limited, FSE Llifestyle Services
Limited and Ten Pao Group Holdings Limited, the shares of these
companies are listed on the Stock Exchange. He had been an
independent non-executive director of landsea Green Properties
Co., ltd. and China BlueChemical Lid.,
listed on the Stock Exchange, until his resignation on 19 June 2020
and 27 May 2021 respectively. Mr. Llee joined the Company in
November 2006.

the shares of which are

Prof. Lee T. S., dlias, Lee Tien-sheng, aged 73, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Prof. lee is currently the Professor
Emeritus of the Department of Supply Chain and Information
Management of Hang Seng University of Hong Kong (formerly
known as Hang Seng Management College). He was the Dean of
the Faculty of Business Administration of The Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 2002 to 2008, Vice-President (Academic &
Research) of Hang Seng Management College from 2009 to
2014, the Head and Professor of the Department of Supply Chain
and Information Management of Hang Seng Management College
from 2009 to 2015 and a Chair Professor of Feng Chia University,
Taiwan from December 2015 to January 2019. Prof. lee obtained
his PhD in Business Administration and Master's degree in Business
Administration from the University of Missouri-Columbia, the United
1982 and 1978 respectively. He also holds a Master's
degree in Management Science and a Bachelor's degree in
Electronic Engineering from the National Chiao Tung University of
Taiwan. Prof. lee's research and teaching inferests include supply
chain management, quality management and business process
reengineering. He has published his research in many academic
journals. Prof. Lee joined the Company in November 2006.

States in
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Directors and Senior I\/\unagement (Continued)

M RRREIE )

Senior Management

Ms. Law Yuk Ying, aged 42, is the Group Financial Controller. Ms.
Law is responsible for the supervision and management of the
Group's overall financial matters and investor relations. She joined
the Group in 2008 as the Group Accounting Manager and was
appointed fo the present position in 2019. Ms. law obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. She is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Ms. Llaw has over 19 years of experience in auditing, financial
accounting, corporate investment and financing, as well as
management.
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Corporate Governance Report

(¢ FERER: A

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to AT EEGREEBM MR RIFNLESE
the maintenance of good corporate governance practices and  SAEIRRIZF o KA R EREFHNEEE AL
procedures. The Company believes that good corporate governance AEMMEIR - BE2HIABI XL ~ AIFER
provides a framework that is essential for effective management, a  FEE R M IRFBERIRFTHEILESS o

healthy corporate culture, sustainable business growth and

enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code [the AT RMEBHMEXZFABEREAT (MHAL
"CG Code") as contained in Appendix 14 fo the Rules Governing  FffJ) 8% Em#REI (T Em#R8 ) MY 8E+IOFF &
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong B2 E AR (ThEEASFE])) EAHD
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of B AEMRAISTR o

corporatfe governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with ol  ZER %A » XA BDRBEE_ZT_—5+_H8
code provisions under the CG Code so far as they are applicable  =+—H1EEE (TClEE#AR ) R—BHESTFRA
and a maijority of the recommended best practices under the CG  EEATRIFBEATRNEX » UK AKZH 1
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 [the “Review B ATFREZNIREER ©

Period”).

Governance Structure

BN

Board of Directors
(5 Executive Directors*
and 3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

EEg
(AEZRTES )
= REIIFAITES)

Nomination Committee
(1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent

Non-Executive Directors)

Remuneration Committee
(1 Executive Director
and 3 Independent

Non-Executive Directors)

Audit Committee
(3 Independent
Non-Executive Directors)

e BEZEEY RREEE
(—BRTEER (Z2BIFRTES) (—BRTEER
= REIUIFRITES) = REIIFRITES)

Audit Centre
(Assistant Director — Internal Audit)

G
(REFETE4BER)

One of the Executive Directors resigned affer the Review Period.

Y HAE—ERTEFROERREE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Directors

Board Composition

The Directors place great emphasis on the fiduciary nature of the
Board's responsibilities and strive to be accountable to the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

A board diversity policy has been formulated by the Board setting
out the approach fo maintaining a Board with a diversity of directors.
The Company recognises the benefits of diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting ifs sustainable development. All
Boord appointments will continue to be based on meritocracy with
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and confribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the Review Period, the Board comprises five Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Man Tai (Chairman), Ms. Cheng Pik
Ho Liza (Chief Executive Officer), Madam Ngok Ming Chu, Mr.
Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun; and three Independent Non-
Executive Direcfors, namely Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. lee Kwan Hung and
Prof. lee T. S. The number of Independent Non-Executive Directors
represents more than one-third of the Board. Subsequent to the
Review Period, Mr. Cheng Man Tai has resigned as Chairman and
Executive Director with effect from 1 February 2022, and Madam
Ngok Ming Chu has been appointed as the Chairman with effect
from the conclusion of the meeting of the Board on 24 March 2022
approving the annual results of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021. The biographical details of and relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed under the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 32 of
this annual report.

The Directors believe that the composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership as all the Executive Directors possess extensive
experience in management and the research and development,
design, production and marketing of lingerie products while the
three Independent Non-Executive Directors possess professional
knowledge and broad experience in finance, law and management
respectively. The Direcfors are of the opinion that the present structure
of the Board can ensure the independence and objectivity of the
Board and provide a sysfem of checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Article 108(A) of the articles of association of the Company provides
that one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rofation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every three years
at the Company’s annual general meeting and shall be eligible for
re-election. Under Article 105, the office of a Director of the
Company is liable to be vacated in certain circumstances and the
Company may remove any Director of the Company by an ordinary
resolution at a general meefing as prescribed in Arficle 114.

The appointment of new Directors and nomination of Directors for re-
election at annual general meetings are first considered by the
Nomination Committee. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision. New Directors
appointed by the Board are subject o re-election by shareholders af
the next following annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company. In considering the appointment of new
Directors, the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate
according to the criteria sef out in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing
Rules. In the case of a candidate for an Independent Non-Executive
Director, he/she should also meet the independence criteria sef ouf
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Executive Directors

Each of the Executive Directors has respectively entered info a
service agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years.
Each Executive Director is entifled fo a discretionary management
bonus provided that the aggregate amount of the bonuses payable
fo all the Executive Directors for any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated net profit of the
Group [after taxation and non-controlling interests and payment of
such bonuses) for that financial year of the Company. An Executive
Director shall not vote on any resolution of the Directors regarding
the amount of the management bonus payable to him/her.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors was appointed for
a ferm of two years with a formal letter of appointment setting out the
key terms and conditions of his appointment.

Save for the direcfors’ fees and the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme (as defined on page 61 of this annual report]
fo each of them, none of the Independent Non-Executive Directors is
expected fo receive any other remuneration for holding his office as
an Independent Non-Executive Director.

The Company annually assesses the independence of each
Independent Non-Executive Director during his term of appointment.
In February and March 2022, the Company received from each of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on
such confirmations, the Company considers all the Independent
Non-Executive Directors are independent.

Proceedings of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings

The Board considers that all meetings should be legally and properly
convened. The Chairman of the Board takes the lead fo ensure that
Board meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the articles of
association of the Company, the ferms of reference of the respective
Board committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consulation with all the Directors and the Company Secrefary. Prior
notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the Directors af
least 14 days in advance and the Directors are invited to include
matters for discussion in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying
Board papers are sent to all the Directors at least 3 days (or such
other period as agreed) prior fo meefings.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
other electronic means of communication, of all the Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
aftend. For special Board meetings, reasonable nofice is given.
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The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secrefary fo ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board, including all concerns raised by the
Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of all Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are available for inspection
by any Director, auditor or any relevant eligible parties who can
have access fo such minutes.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The record of attfendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and annual general meeting
held during 2021 is set out in the following table:

PREESEHIERLAEAMNENERMARS > UL
BREFEEF KB BERRARRGIIERS
BT o

EFEENERCRERNCREFEMERES
BEFIE  HREEREFRUNAEREIE
ERERORBER - EFESE ~ LT
AEERNSERCENERA T ERMR
BEFEEENEFEEGEHECH

ESFMHFETLE
TRHFISEER S —FRBTNESS
B EELEREHERRIBEATHHE
e

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

EEHEREBITRE
Annual
Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
ES EFEg EREZET REZET FNZEST RRBEKXKY
Executive Directors HMTEE
Cheng Man Tai* (Chairman) B33 * (/%) 6/6 N/ARER N/ATER N/ATRER 1/1
Cheng Pik Ho liza EREEE (FTECAEE,) 6/6 N/AXREA 2/2 2/2 1/1
(Chief Executive Officer)
Ngok Ming Chu eliZhe S 6/6 N/ATER N/ATBER N/ATBEHA 1/1
Cheng Chuen Chuen EEe 6/6 N/ATREA N/AFTER N/ATEA 1/1
Lu Qun EeBt 6/6 N/ATER N/ATBER N/ATBEA 1/1
Independent Non-Executive HIIIEHITESR
Directors
Lau Siu Ki 218 E 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
lee Kwan Hung )i 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
lee T.S. =KRE 6/6 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
Average Attendance Rate T EE 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

* Resigned after the Review Period.

In addition, the Chairman met once with the Independent Non-
Executive Directors without the presence of other Directors.

* REEERREIE R o

A 5 R R E E R BB R T RS
SEITEERTT —RGH o
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim to
indemnify its Directors and senior executives from any losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and expenses arising from, including but not
limited to, any proceedings brought against them during the
performance of their duties pursuant to their respective service
agreements entered into with the Company.

Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers ["Model Code”) [with
certain modifications but on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code) as set out in Appendix 10 fo
the Listing Rules as its own code (“Securities Dealing Code”) to
regulate the securities dealings by all the Directors and relevant
employees of the Group.

The Company made specific enquiry of all the Directors and
members of the senior management who confirmed that they
complied with the Securities Dealing Code during the Review
Period.

Continuous Professional Development
Pursuant to the CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the
board remains informed and relevant.

During the Review Period, all Directors received regular briefings
and updates on the Group's business, operations, infernal confrols
and corporate governance matters. Relevant reading materials were
provided fo the Directors. They also attended courses and seminars
organised by external professional bodies on topics relevant to the
duties and responsibilities of a director during the Review Period. Al
Directors have provided the Company with their respective training
records pursuant to the CG Code.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by
Directors

There is a written procedure agreed by the Board to enable
Directfors, upon reasonable request, to seek and be provided with
independent professional advice in appropriafe circumstances, at
the Company’s expense in order fo assist them fo discharge their
duties to the Company.
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Functions of the Board

Distinctive Roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
To avoid concentration of power in any one individual, a clear
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer is crucial to the effective running of the Board and
the day-to-day management of the Group's businesses. During the
Review Period, the positions of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company are held by two different Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheng Man Tai and Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza
respectively. Their roles and duties are segregafed, with a clear
division of responsibilities. Mr. Cheng Man Tai, the Chairman, is fo
provide leadership for the Board and ensure that the Board works
effectively while Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza, the Chief Executive Officer,
is answerable to the Board for the operations of the Group. Mr.
Cheng is the father of Ms. Cheng.

Subsequent to the Review Period, Mr. Cheng Man Tai has resigned
as Chairman and Executive Director with effect from 1 February
2022, and Madam Ngok Ming Chu has been appointed as the
Chairman with effect from the conclusion of the meeting of the Board
on 24 March 2022 approving the annual results of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Distinctive Roles of the Board and the Management

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding and
monitoring the operations of the Group, in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to:

*  the standing Board committees of the Company namely: the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Each committee’s constitution,
powers and duties are clearly defined by ifs terms of reference,
and the committees are accountable to the Board. Ad hoc
Board committees may also be established as required from
fime fo time by the Board;

e the Chief Executive Officer, being delegated with the day-to-
day management of the businesses of the Group, is
accountable to the Board; and

®  the senior management feam of the Group, being delegated
with the responsibilities to deal with daily operational functions,
is answerable to the Executive Directors.
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The Board believes that effective delegation of authority can ensure
that the Board is provided with sufficient and timely information of
the Group's businesses which is, in particular, relevant to the
Group's performance, financial position and operating results, in
order that the Board is able to make an informed assessment of
matters put before the Board for approval. During the Review Period,
each Executive Director had frequent meetings with operational
managers in order fo mainfain an effective feedback system and
enable the Company to react to changes or problems quickly and
effectively.

The functions reserved to the Board are formalized in writing and
include:

®  any matters relating to the formulation of the Company's
strategy and direction;

®  any mafters relating tfo financial controls, compliance and risk
management;

® any changes in corporate structure such as the changes
relating to the Company’s capital structure, including share
buy-back or issue of new securities;

*  major appoiniments such as appointments fo the Board, affer
taking info account the recommendations of the Nomination
Committee; the appointment of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer; recommendations to the shareholders on the
appointment or removal of external auditor after taking info
consideration the recommendations of the Audit Committee;
and the appointment or removal of the Group Financial
Controller and the Company Secretary;

®  any matters defermined by the Board to be material, including
dividend policy, significant changes in accounting policies,
material contracts, major financing arrangements and major
investments; and

e the corporate governance functions sef out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.
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With respect fo the corporate governance functions, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, and the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Board regularly reviews its arrangement for delegation of
authority to ensure that such delegation is appropriate in view of the
Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate reporting
systems are in place.

Board Committees

A total of three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, have
been formed, each of which is delegated with specific roles and
responsibilities by the Board. All the Board committees follow the
same principles and procedures as those of the Board. The Board
receives the minutes of each commitiee meeting on a regular basis,
including their decisions and recommendations.

Audit Commitiee

At present, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-
Executive Direcfors, namely:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki (Chairman)
Mr. lee Kwan Hung
Prof. lee T. S.

Members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board
among the Independent Non-Executive Directors and the committee
consisfs of not less than three members. The Board considers that
each Audit Committee member has broad commercial experience
and together form a suitable mix of expertise in the legal and
accounting fields and that the composition and members of the Audit
Committee comply with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the
Audit Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Audit
Comnmittee to enable if fo discharge its duties.
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The Audit Committee has the responsibilities and powers sef forth in
its terms of reference. To maintain its independence, the Audit
Comnmittee is required to have at least one meetfing with the external
auditor without the presence of Executive Directors within a financial
year. The function of the committee is to provide assistance fo the
Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities to shareholders,
potential shareholders, the investment community and other
stakeholders relating fo:

e the infegrity of accounts and financial reporting process of the
Company;

®  the assessment of the external auditor’s qualifications and
independence;

e the performance of the Company's infernal audit function and
the performance of the external auditor; and

° the effectiveness of the risk management and infernal control
systems of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the Review Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings
including one meeting with the external auditor without the presence
of the Executive Directors and the management. The record of
attendance of individual Directors af the commitiee meetings is sef
out on page 37 of this annual report.

The following is o summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Review Period:

(] review of the annual report and results announcement of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(i)  review of the external auditor's independence and their report,
with a recommendation to the Board for the re-appointment of
the external auditor by the shareholders of the Company at its
2021 annual general meeting;

(iii)  review of confinuing connected fransactions;
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(iv] review of the interim report and results announcement of the
Company for the six months ended 30 June 2021, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

[v]  review of quarterly financial reports of the Company prepared
by the Finance and Accounts Department;

(vi)  consideration of audit and non-audit services provided by the
external auditor;

(vii) review of the effectiveness of the risk management and infermnal
control systfems of the Company and ifs subsidiaries;

(viii) review of periodic reports prepared by the Audit Centre;

(ix) review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit

and financial reporting functions, and their training
programmes and budget; and

(x)  review of the audit fees payable to the external auditor for the
year ended 31 December 2021, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration paid/payable
to Emnst & Young, the external auditor of the Company, for the
following services provided during the Review Period:

Services Rendered

FRiR A ARES

(iv)

v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(i)

(x)
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Remuneration
Paid/Payable
2t FETEE

Audit services EIZARTS HK$2,538,000 87T
Non-audit services IEEIZARTS HK$693,000 % 7T
Total: 4Est HK$3,231,000 87T

The Audit Commitiee has expressed its views to the Board that the
level of fees paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor is
reasonable. There has been no major disagreement between the
auditor and the management of the Company during the Review
Period.
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Nomination Committee

At present, the Nomination Committee has four members comprising
one Executive Director and three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely:

Prof. lee T. S. [Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. lee Kwan Hung

The main functions of the Nomination Commitiee are fo review the
structure, size and composition of the Board, to identify individuals
who are suitably qualified to become Directors, and to assess the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors. After
considering the independence and quadlifications of nominees, the
Nomination Committee makes recommendations to the Board so as
to ensure that all nominations are fair and transparent. The
Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing the
succession planning of Directors, in particular the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer. The Board,
chairman of the Nomination Committee, provides sufficient resources
fo the Nomination Committee to enable it to discharge ifs duties.

after consultation with the

The Nomination Committee held two meetings in 2021. The record
of attendance of individual Directors at the commitiee meeting is set
out on page 37 of this annual report.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Nomination Committee during the Review Period:

()  assessment of the independence of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors;

lij  recommendation to the Board on the re-election of Directors;

liii) review of the existing sfructure, size and composition of the
Board; and

(iv)] recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of
Executive Directors of the Company.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
following maijor criteria set out in the Company's director nomination
policy had been considered by the Nomination Commitiee:

e character and integrity;

*  qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience relevant to the Company’s business
and strategy, and diversity aspects under the board diversity
policy of the Company;

®  requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidate
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines sef out in the Listing Rules;

e willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committeels)
of the Company; and

e the overall ability to exercise good judgement and to provide
valuable insights and diverse perspective fo the Board.

The Nomination Committee, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the biographical information of the
candidate, had evaluated such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above fo determine whether such candidate was qualified for
directorship and made recommendation to the Board to appoint the
candidate for directorship.

With respect to the re-election of Directors at the annual general
meeting, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the overall
contribution and services to the Company of the refiring Directors
and the level of participation and performance on the Board to
defermine whether the retiring Directors would confinue fo meet the
criteria as set out above and made recommendation to the Board in
respect of the proposed re-election of Directors at the general
meeting. The relevant information of the retiring Directors together
with the recommendation of the Board would then be disclosed in
the circular accompanying the notice of the general meeting and
sent fo shareholders in accordance with the Llisting Rules and
applicable lows and regulations.
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As a good corporate governance practice, Nomination Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director)
abstained from assessing his own independence and re-
appointment.

The ferms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available
on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Remuneration Committee

At present, the Remuneration Committee has four members
comprising one Executive Director and three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely:

Mr. lee Kwan Hung (Chairman)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza

Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Prof. lee T. S.

The main functions of the Remuneration Committee are to assist the
Board in establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting
policy on Direcfors’ and senior management’s remuneration and to
make recommendation to the Board on the packages (which include
benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments) of
individual Executive Directors and senior management [i.e. the
model described in code provision E.1.2(c|(ii] of the CG Code was
adopted) as well as on the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors.
The Board, after consultation with the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, provides sufficient resources to the Remuneration
Comnmittee to enable it fo discharge its duties.

In recommending the remuneration of the Directors, the Remuneration
Committee makes reference to companies of comparable business
or scale, and the nature and volume of work in order to compensate
the Directors reasonably for their time and efforts spent. The
Remuneration Committee regularly reviews and makes
recommendations fo the Board on the remuneration of Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings in 2021. The
record of aftendance of individual Directors at the committee
meetings is sef out on page 37 of this annual report.
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The following is a summary of the work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Review Period:

()  recommendation to the Board on the payment of bonuses to
the senior management staff in Mainland Ching;

(i)  recommendation to the Board on the payment of discrefionary
bonuses fo the Executive Directors and staff in respect of the
final results of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the inferim results of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2021

(i) review of the new service agreements between the Company
and Executive Directors of the Company, with advice and a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

(iv]  recommendation fo the Board on the payment of director’s fees
to Independent Non-executive Directors; and

[v]  recommendation to the Board on the vesting of share options
under the Share Option Scheme to Directors and selected
employees.

As a good corporate governance practice, Remuneration Committee
member (being also the Independent Non-Executive Director) had
not involved in reviewing his own director’s fees.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange's website.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the member of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:
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Defails of the remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2021 are sef out in nofe 10 fo the financial statements.

RBEE_Z_—F+-_RB=+—HLFEFH
BESHMASF BRI BERERME 10 -
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Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements with the assistance of the accounting team in
and appropriate financial
reporting  standards for each financial period, which shall give a
position of the
Group and of the consolidated financial performance and cash

accordance with statutory requirements
true and fair view of the consolidated financial

flows for such financial period. During the Review Period, the
Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relafing to events
or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to confinue in business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared
the financial statements of the Group on a going concern basis.

All the Directors acknowledged their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about the
auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is sef out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 69 to
76 of this annual report.

The Company announces ifs interim and annual results as soon as
reasonably practicable after the end of the relevant financial period
and the financial year respectively pursuant to the requirements of
the Listing Rules, disclosing all such information as would enable the
Company's shareholders to assess the performance, financial
position and prospects of the Group.

Dividend Policy

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the shareholders of the Company, subject to the articles of
association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations. In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company
shall maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working capifal
requirements and future growth as well as ifs shareholder value. The
Company has no fixed dividend pay-out ratio. The Board considers
that, in general, the amount of dividends to be declared will depend
on the Group's financial results, cash position, capital requirements,
business conditions and strategies, and other factors as may be
considered relevant af such time by the Board.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for establishing and
maintaining appropriate risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. Risk
management and infernal confrol systems are designed fo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Group has established
comprehensive policies and procedures in areas of operational,
financial and risk confrols.

The Group has an internal audit function. The Audit Centre of the
Group conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control sysfems. It carries out the financial,
operational, project management and information security control
reviews according to the yearly plan reviewed and endorsed by the
Audit Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the
Audit Centre conducts other reviews and work as and when required.
The management, in coordination with the Audit Centre, assessed the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the
risk management progress. Findings and recommendations are
reported regularly to members of the Audit Committee and the Board.

During the Review Period, the management has confirmed to the
Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and the Board had
conducted a review of its risk management and internal control
systems of the Group under code provision D.2.1 and considered
them effective and adequate without the occurrence of any
significant failure.

The Audit Centre of the Group continued to provide independent
assurance to the Board and management on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems for
the Group during the Review Period. The Assistant Direcfor of Audit
Centre reports functionally to the Audit Committee and administratively
to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Board undertakes to periodically review the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group to ensure their effectiveness
and efficiency.
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The Board reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions, and their fraining programmes and
budget during the Review Period and considered that the Group
had adequate staff resources with the competence, qualifications
and experience necessary for the effective performance of its
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

A whistleblowing policy has been formulated with a view to
providing a mechanism for employees of the Group to raise
concerns about the possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal confrol or other matters. Infernal procedures are put in place
whereby employees of the Group can report possible risks and
inside information identified in daily operation to the Board.
Furthermore, the Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Company Secretary

Ms. So Ka Man of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,
has been engaged by the Company as its Company Secretfary. The
primary contact person at the Company, whom Ms. So can confact,
is Ms. Law Yuk Ying, the Group Financial Controller of the
Company.

During the Review Period, Ms. So has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Company has engaged a professional public relations
consultancy company to organise various investor relations programs
(including regular briefing meetings with the media and analysts)
aiming at increasing the tfransparency of the Company, enhoncing
communication with shareholders and investors, increasing their
understanding of and confidence in the Group's businesses and
promoting market recognition of and support to the Company.

The Company recognises the importance of mainfaining on-going
communications with its shareholders and encourages them to attend
shareholders’ meetings to stay informed of the Group's businesses
and convey any concerns they may have to the Direcfors and senior
management.
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Shareholders’ Rights

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company by
Shareholders

In accordance with Article 64 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing fo the Directors
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an
extraordinary general meeting fo be called by the Directors for the
fransaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries by shareholders to be put to the Board can be sent in
writing to the Company’s Company Secretarial Department at the
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the Company's registered shareholders can
confact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services limited. For other enquires or requests, the
Company's investors can contact iPR Ogilvy Limited, the Company's
investor relations consultancy company. Detailed contact information
is available on the Company’s website at www.embrygroup.com.

Procedures for Making Proposals af Shareholders’ Meetings

If a shareholder of the Company wishes fo nominate a person to
stand for election as a Director, the following documents must be
validly sent to the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or the Company'’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, namely (i) his/her notice of infention to
propose a resolution at the general meeting; and [ii) a notice
executed by the nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness
fo be appointed. The period for lodgment of the nofices of (i) and {ii)
above will commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting and end no lafer than seven days
prior fo the date of such meeting.
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To put forward proposals other than the above af a general meeting,
shareholders of the Company should submit a written notice of those
proposals with their detailed contact information to the Company
Secretfary at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the proposal raised by the shareholders concermed
at general meetings varies according fo the nature of the proposal.

During the Review Period, the Company has not made any changes
fo ifs articles of association. An upfo-date version of the articles of
association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the
articles of association for further details of the rights of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

HE W

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Defails
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 37 fo
the financial statements. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages /7 to 180.

An inferim dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
6 October 2021. The directors do not recommend the payment of
a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021.
Details of dividends are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Summary Financial Information S 5 ) g

A summary of the published results and assets and licbilities of the MU TFTERAXAEBHERFAABEMREE X8R
Group for the last five financial years, as exfracted from the BEREBEBEBERERTIEEEZIESHHER
published audited consolidated financial statements is set out below.  REHFIUITF o

Results e

Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=1+—HL=EE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
T —F TTTF TT-hF 2 )N\F ZZT—tF
HKS’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET

REVENUE Yo 1,652,408 1,650,483 2,266,867 2,451,874 2,339,524
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE PR AN EFR,

TAX (E548) (16,383) 20,519 125,275 227,076 675,459
INCOME TAX EXPENSE FRiISIREX (11,102) (23,343) (44,953) (75,911)  (180,160)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR FEHH 7 (§518)

THE YEAR (27,485) (2,824 80,322 151,165 495,299
Attributable to: LUFALFER

Owners of the Company PiN/N=IEZ =N (27,485) (2,824) 80,322 151,165 495,299
Assets and Liahilities BEERER

As at 31 December
®W+=—A=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

TR -F TETITF TTNF ZEN\F T —tF

HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FHT TET THET FHET FHET

TOTAL ASSETS BEEWE 3,304,777 3,420,445 3,504,496 3,290,251 3,249,851
TOTAL UABILITIES aERE (788,504) (941,056) (1,155,221) (958,532) (882,741

2,516,273 2,488,389 2,349,275 2,331,719 2,367,110

The above summary does not form part of the audited financial — EXBIE T ABAAS B LM B IREZN—E5 ©

statements.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
are sef out in note 28 fo the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for preemptive rights under the Company's
arficles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company fo offer new shares on a prorata basis
fo existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act,
Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to HK$916,194,000. The amount of
HK$916,194,000, includes the Company’s share premium and
contributed surplus of HK$767,760,000 in aggregate at 31
December 2021, which may be distributed provided that
immediately following the dafe on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its

debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling

HK$8,514,000.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
and purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
less than 30% of the total sales and purchases for the year,
respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital] had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

s 9o 3 ()

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Man Tai (Chairman)*

Madam Ngok Ming Chu (Chairman)*

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Lliza (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen

Ms. Lu Qun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Siu Ki

Mr. lee Kwan Hung
Prof. lee T. S.

*

After the end of the reporting period, Mr. Cheng Man Tai has
resigned as Chairman and executive director with effect from 1
February 2022, and Madam Ngok Ming Chu has been appointed
as the Chairman with effect from the conclusion of the meeting of the
Board on 24 March 2022 approving the annual results of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

In accordance with article 108 of the Company's articles of
association, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, Ms. Llu Qun and Prof. lee T. S.
will refire by rofation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM”).

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Lau Siu Ki, Mr. lee Kwan Hung and Prof. lee T. S.
pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Llimited [the "Stock
Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), and as at the date of this report, still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior

management of the Group are set out on pages 28 to 32 of the
annual report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

s 9o 3 ()

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Company's arficles of association, subject to the
applicable laws, every director of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assefs of the Company from and
against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her office.
The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against direcfors of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Mr. Cheng Man Tai, Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza, Madam Ngok Ming
Chu, Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen and Ms. Lu Qun, have each entered
info a service agreement with the Company for a ferm of two years
commencing on 23 August 2020, 1 December 2021, 25 March
2020, 22 September 2021 and 2 February 2021, respectively.

The service agreement of Mr. Cheng Man Tai was ferminated on his
resignation effective from 1 February 2022.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has been appointed
for a term of two years commencing on 25 November 2020.

Under the service agreement, affer each complefe year of service,
the remuneration payable to each of the executive directors may,
subject to the discretion of the Company’s board of direcfors, be
increased by not more than 10% and the executive directors are
entitled to a discretionary management bonus provided that the total
amount of bonuses payable fo all the executive directors for that
year shall not exceed 8% of the audited consolidated profit after tax
of the Group.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re<election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not
deferminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Emolument Policy and Directors’
Remuneration

The Group's emolument policy is formulated based on the
performance of individual employees and is reviewed regularly.
Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group. The primary goal of the emolument policy
with regard to the remuneration packages of the Group's executive
directors is to enable the Group tfo retain and motfivate executive
directors by linking their compensation with performance as
measured against corporate objectives achieved.

The principal elements of the Group's remuneration packages
include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses and housing benefits.

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save for fransactions as disclosed in note
statements, no director nor a connected entity of a director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any fransactions,
arrangements or confracts of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

13 to the financial
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares

and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2021

, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive in the share capital and underlying
shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the 11 ('3
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFQ")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the  (MZZESFAI ) i@

o 4 B A BRI B by B R

BB B 1) Bl 2t B 96 X

A — g —

R—= —

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers &1 :
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

—F+ZA=+t—H> EFRITHR
HNARBHHAM ZE (EEREFKRPE
G RRHRERGI L) XV E) IRA R ABE
B0 ¥R B AR A BIREE 5 A E 155
B2 FEFENE LA R
BB LHERTAEFTETESIZRE
K2R B) Be Hgh 22 PR B Ao e B2 sk

/)\)E' ’ EJZ/E\
Sl

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAATE@EBREFE !

Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRisia(nRetE  (SEARBHT
2 SRS iR BRETETIR fTEIRA%HE RRAHIESLE
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 3,628,220 0.86

B RSTE BB A EiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 1,430,000 0.34

BnEBA FERRRE (MzE 1)
Inferest of spouse Ordinary shares (Nofe 2 146,019,932 34.57

FofdtEm EiEk (zz2)
Interest of spouse  Share options (Nofes 1 & 2) 1,300,000 0.31

FofBtEm

FEiE (Wyat 1702)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares

and Underlying Shares (continved)

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: (continued)

o 4 B A BRI B by B R

RAERBEE

kovra - (8

3 WO RE 23 R W ()

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FR¥sIR(DIRHE (LB ATEHIT
EENg S REEEE B&inRREFTETIR fTETRA%E B2
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Interest of controlled Ordinary shares (Note 3 143,041,031 33.86
corporations
ERHL T RSN BT i@ (aE3)
Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 2,978,901 0.71
BaERE A ZiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 1,300,000 0.31
BB A BERRRE (B3t 1)
Inferest of spouse Ordinary shares (Nofe 4] 3,628,220 0.86
FofBs B (FaE4)
Inferest of spouse  Share options (Nofes T & 4) 1,430,000 0.34
Mo REAGHE (5E 1 /14)
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho liza Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 60,087,577 14.22
mEET T+ BB A ZiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 1,220,000 0.29
BB A BERRRE (B3t 1)
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 28,094,709 6.65
mE2EE BaERE A ZiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 205,000 0.07
BB A BERRRE (B3t 1)
Ms. Lu Qun Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 1,024,057 0.24
3o BaERE A ZiEk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 665,000 0.16
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s

Interests and Short Positions in Shares

and Underlying Shares (continved)

R AT AR I B B b B
3 WO RE 23 R W ()

Llong positions in ordinary shares of the Company: (continued) RARATEBENGAE © (B)
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity shares/equity issued share
Name of director nature of interest derivatives derivatives held capital
FRishRen MetE  (EFATBHT
EENR B RhiEmtE R BRETETR fTEIA%E RAFNESLE
Mr. Lau Siu Ki Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 768,000 0.18
FEESE BnEBA EiEhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 100,000 0.02
BB A BERE (Wa 1)
Mr. lee Kwan Hung Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 522,000 0.12
FIRSE BmEBA ZiEhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 100,000 0.02
BEEAA FERE (WaE 1)
Prof. lee T.S. Beneficial owner Ordinary Shares 604,000 0.14
FREHE BmEBA ZiEhk
Beneficial owner Share options (Nofe 1) 100,000 0.02
BB A FERE (WaE 1)
Notes: Mfat -

These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
fo the respective directors upon the exercise of the share options
granted fo each of them under the share option scheme adopted on
28 May 2020 (the "Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share
Option Scheme are disclosed in note 30 fo the financial statements.

Mr. Cheng Man Tai is deemed to be inferested in the shares and
share options personally held or controlled by his spouse, Madam
Ngok Ming Chu, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These shares are held by Harmonious World Llimited ("Harmonious
World"). Harmonious World is owned as to 29.11% by Mr. Cheng
Man Tai and as to 70.89% by Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

Madam Ngok Ming Chu is deemed to be inferested in the shares
and share options personally held by her spouse, Mr. Cheng Man
Tai, pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares (continved)

Llong positions in ordinary shares of an associated corporation:

R AT AR I B B b B
3 WO RE 23 R W ()

POAEEEEE S @R R -

Percentage of
the associated

Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number nature of issued share
Name of director corporation Company of shares interest capital
& AEES % B
B AT Sk [SR5E7:02: S
ERENR MREEE RS BIRA{Z LiabE 4= s BB
Madam Ngok Ming Chu Harmonious ~ Ultimate holding  40.09 shares of Beneficial 70.89
World company US$1 each owner
ERRTR L £+ BREERAE] 40.09KREK En#EAA
ENEREST
HIRR 15
Mr. Cheng Man Tai Harmonious ~ Ultimate holding  16.46 shares of Beneficial 29.11
World company US$1 each owner
LS i BEERAE 16.46 IR R% En#EAA
ENEREST
HIRR 15
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the BRESEEEIN R B —F+"B=+—

directors and chief executive of the Company had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant fo section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Inferest and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above
and in the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during
the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of the
directors or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company or any of ifs subsidiaries a party to any arrangement fo
enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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Share Option Scheme

Defails of the Share Option Scheme and the share option movements
during the year are disclosed in note 30 to the financial stafements.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme was 42,241,663 shares,
representing approximately 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2021,

issued share capital of the Company (other than the interests of the
directors of the Company as disclosed above] were recorded in the
register of inferests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

the following interests of 5% or more of the

Yl ¢ R s )
BB R 31 B S R E PO O BRI BN I B TSR
FHS0E -

RAREEHER > BB EIIR T A HETHR
PHBEA 42,241,663 > (AR AT BETR
ZREY 10% ©

T U P I N iR e o B
A R 1 D )

TR —F+"A=+—H > UTAL(EX
PRREEZ A RBEFEmIFIN REAAB S H#

TTRRAHFER 5% B L REEA R AT IRIEE
FEAE RGBS 336 1FF ENE LMD :

section 336 of the SFO:

long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RN B EEIENETFE
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity share equity issued share
Name nature of interest derivatives  derivatives held capital
B2, RetE EFATE T
wa B RiEmttE f1ETA FriFRR R 8 E ;2N o= Ao
Harmonious World Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 143,041,031 33.86
BmEEA ZimAs
(Note 1)
(FgzET)
Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of controlled Ordinary shares 29,299,000 6.94
corporations
il VNETL il ZimAs
(Note 2)
(F35E2)
Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of controlled Ordinary shares 29,299,000 6.94
corporations
et VNETL v il ZiEAs
(Note 2)
(F35E2)

Annual Report %R 2021 / Embry Holdings Limited ]

SERERA

6

3



64

Report of the Directors (Continued)

s 9o 3 ()

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other 3 W o By Hoqth N 1R B Be
Persons’ Interests in Shares and R kRS (&
Underlying Shares (confinved)
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
Capacity and Shares/equity share equity issued share
Name nature of interest derivatives  derivatives held capital
Bei5,BetE BT EHT
2] BirkiExmtE f1£1TAa DEE L= RAEBESEE
FIL Limited Interest of controlled Ordinary shares 29,299,000 6.94
corporations
ZERIASED ZiEhg
(Note 2)
(ff5E2)
Sinowide Investments Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 30,000,000 7.10
Bm#EB A sk
Ms. Wong Oi Fan Inferest of spouse Ordinary shares 28,094,709 6.65
FESu L FofBEm HiEk
(Note 3)
(BfF5E 3)
Inferest of spouse Share options 295,000 0.07
FoiBEm fEhcE
(Note 3)
(B 3)
Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 22,366,661 5.29
BRI+ BmEAA =ik
(Note 4)
(ff5E4)
Beneficial owner Share options 185,000 0.04
BmER A fERetE
(Note 5)
(5T 5)
Mr. Cheng Ka Hei Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 22,064,732 5.22
BRERE BmEAA PG
(Note 6)
(FzE 0)
Ms. Mei Zhen Inferest of spouse Ordinary shares 22,004,732 5.22
tetaz =+ FofBm EFEL
(Note 7)
(FtzE7)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other
Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continved)

Nofes:

1. The relationship between Harmonious World, Mr. Cheng Man Tai
and Madam Ngok Ming Chu is disclosed under the section
"Directors” and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares” above.

2. Pandanus Associates Inc. is a general partner of Pandanus Partners L.P.
who in turn owns or controls one-third or more of vofing rights in FIL
Limited.

3. Ms. Wong Oi Fan is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an
executive director of the Company. She is deemed to be inferested in
the shares and share options personally held by her spouse pursuant
fo Part XV of the SFO.

4. Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan is the granddaughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai
and Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

5. These represent the number of shares which will be allotted and issued
tfo Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan upon the exercise of the share options
granted to her under the Share Option Scheme.

6. Mr. Cheng Ka Hei is the grandson of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

7. Ms. Mei Zhen is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Ka Hei. She is deemed to
be interested in the shares and share options personally held by her
spouse pursuant fo Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose inferests are set out
in the section
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required fo be recorded pursuant fo section 336

of the SFO.

"Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total number of issued shares were held by the public as
at the date of this report.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected
fransactions, details of which are disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(1)

(2)

Purchase of furniture and decoration services

The services agreements which were entered into between the
Company, certain subsidiaries of the Group and the related
companies in relation to the purchase of furniture and services
of decoration for counters and shops as well as different types
of moulds (the “Services”) in 2017 and 2018 expired on 31
December 2020. The Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Group therefore entered info a new services agreement
with the related companies on 14 December 2020 (the
"2020 Agreement’). Under the 2020 Agreement, the Group
agreed to purchase the Services from the related companies
1 January 2021. The
related companies are controlled by an executive director of

for a period of three years starting from

the Company and his close family members. Further details
were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 14
December 2020 and 29 December 2020.

The continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
above service agreement would only be subject to the
reporting, annual review and announcement requirements and
are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

Lease of warehouse

A subsidiary of the Company has been leasing a warehouse
in Hong Kong from an executive director of the Company. The
continuing connected fransaction under the tenancy agreement
consfitutes a de minimis fransaction under the Listing Rules and
is exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected fransactions of the Group

are set out in note 13(a) to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

s 9o 3 ()

Continuing Connected Transactions
(continued)

Pursuant fo Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the continuing connected
fransactions disclosed in (1] above and confirmed that the continuing
connected transactions have been entered info:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i)  according fo the agreement governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the inferests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The total amount in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above during the year under review has not
exceeded the annual cap for the fransactions.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above,
the directors confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the year under review.

The Company has also received a lefter from Ernst & Young, the
Company's auditor, fo report on the Group's confinuing connecfed
fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to
Practice Note 740 (Revised) Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst &
Young have issued their unmodified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed in (1) above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come to their affention that
causes them fo believe the continuing connected fransactions:

() have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i)  were not enfered info, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

i) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual cap disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 14 December

2020.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

s 9o 3 ()

Business Review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 is provided in the sections “Financial Highlights”, “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on
1, and pages 13 to 23 respectively of this
Annual Report. For environmental policies and performance,

page 3, pages 8 to |

compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and a description
of relationships with key stakeholders, please refer to the
"Environmental, Social and Governance Report” which will be
available on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited together with this Annual Report.

Auditor

Emnst & Young retfire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditor of the Company will be proposed af the AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Cheng Pik Ho Liza

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

¥ N2 A% BB ¥

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Embry Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Embry
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 77 to 180, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes fo the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"] and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audif in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Audifing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilifies in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ N Ao BB R ()

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For
each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

I3RS % il 2 IR
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How our audit addressed EFIRVEHN

Key audit matter the key audit matter RS E s+ H/IA EIERARE s+ HIA
Inventory provision ﬁ"‘iﬁﬁ

As at 31 December 2021, the We tested the accuracy of the N_E_—F+ "8 HMAEANR S&£H
Group had net inventories of ageing analysis of the Group’s =+—H> B&£EEHN FENFEHRERYED
HK$526,358,000, representing inventories. We recalculated the  3H77 15 2%526 358,000 #re HfiIiRIE HE
50% and 16% of the Group's inventory provision under the BT DREENEE ENEEENIESE
current assets and total assefs, Croup's policy and assessed the  HHBIES ERALEEN SiEE  WHEBRE
respectively. The estimation of the — assumptions being used in the 50% R 16% o BB R ?—? SEBEBERENE

inventory provision requires
significant management
judgement, which includes the
recoverability of the cost of
inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the
marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw
materials.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the
details of inventory provision are
included in notes 3, @ and 20 to
the financial statements.

Embry Holdings Limited 2]

inventory provision calculation
by reviewing the basis, the
rafionale and the consistency of
the inventory provision policy,
considering the historical and
current inventory ageing
information and taking into
account the historical sales
pattern of aged inventories.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Key audit matters (confinved)

R S8 % w3 ()

How our audit addressed FEsyESH M
Key audit matter the key audit matter PRI HIE BIPRRELEIE
Impairment assessment of H & ERETE
Other Asset
As at 31 December 2021, the With regard to management's N_E-—F+"H BEREEEYHM
Group had Other Assef (as defined  impairment assessment of Other =—+—H> SE£EEN BTEMNEHETHG
in nofe 19 to the financial Assef, we reviewed the objectivily, HMZBE(ETEEWE RMPEOEETEE
statements) of HK$437,073,000,  independence and expertise of the  19) 437,073,000  FrBe B899 2 (&

representing 17% and 13% of the
Group's net assets and tofal
assets, respectively. Under the
annual impairment festing, the
Group conducted the impairment
assessment by comparing the nef
carrying amount of Other Asset
with its fair value as determined
based on the valuation performed
by external valuers and a method
of valuation which involved
cerfain assumptions, including
gross unit rate per square metre.
The assumptions used in the
valuation have involved significant
management judgement.

Related disclosures about the
accounting esfimation and the
details of impairment assessment of
Other Asset are included in notes 3
and 19 fo the financial statements.

extemnal valuers engoged by
management and assessed the
related data and assumptions
being adopted, including
unobservable inputs and other
estimates, by comparing key
valuation parameters including the
gross unit rate per square mefre
with market information. VWe
involved our valuation specidlists fo
assist us in reviewing the valuation
methodologies and key valuation
parameters on the fair value
estimation of Other Asset. We also
assessed the disclosures relating 1o
the assumptions used in determining
the fair value of Other Asset in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ N Ao BB R ()

Key audit matters (confinved)

R S8 % w3 ()

How our audit addressed HEFIREH N
Key audit matter the key audit matter FAREtEIE EIEMRETEE
Impairment assessment of EREEERET G
right-of-use assets
As at 31 December 2021, the We evaluated management's RIEBE_—F+_-H EMERE S£E
Group had rightof-use assets of impairment assessment and the =+—0 > 85ENE HNEFERKRIEFNU
HK$174,863,000, representing  identification of CGUs orgroups I # B E A ERERMAY S£E%
8% and 5% of the Group's non- of CGUs based on the Group's 174,863,000/ 9 HEHTH#E  sHHEIE
current assets and fofal assets, accounting policies and our AEER EEEIERE BHIRBESELEMLY
respectively. Management understanding of the Group's BEREBBEEMNSLE REES BN

performed impairment assessments

on the Group's rightof-use assets

where an indicator of impairment of

rightof-use assefs existed. During

the year, an impairment of rightoF

use assets of HK$25,777,000
was recognised fo reduce the

carrying amounts of cerfain rightof

use assefs to their recoverable
amounts.

When performing the impairment
fesf, management defermined the

recoverable amounts of the relevant

cash-generating units ("CGUs") or
groups of CGUs as at 31

December 2021 based on value in

use calculations using the
discounted cash flow method.

Significant management judgement
and estimates were involved in the

assessments of the recoverable
amounts of CGUs or groups of
CGUs, for example budgeted
sales, budgefed expenses and
discount rate. The oufcome was
sensitive to the expected future
market conditions and the actual
performance of the CGUs or
groups of CGUs.

Related disclosures about the
accounting estimation and the

details of impairment assessment of

rightofuse assefs are included in
notes 3, 9 and 18 fo the financial
statements.

business.

In evaluating management's
impairment assessment, we also
assessed (i) the value in use
calculation methodology
adopted by management in
determining of recoverable
amounts of CGUs or groups of
CGCUs, and |ii) the key
assumptions used in the
calculations:

—  for budgeted sales and
expenses, by comparing
the Group's budgets of the
relevant CGUs with the
historical results; and

—  for discount rate, by
making reference fo market
data and comparable
companies in the indusiry
with the assistance of our
internal valuation
specialisfs.

We also assessed the disclosures
of the impairment of rightofuse
assets included in note 18 to the
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ N Ao BB R ()

Other information included in the
Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our audifor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial stafements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors defermine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related fo going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ N Ao BB R ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are fo obfain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error, and to issue an audifor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely o you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. VWe do not assume responsibility
fowards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always defect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e I|dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive fo those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of infernal confrol.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

¥ N Ao BB R ()

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw affention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
confrol that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
audifor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
defermine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement pariner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 Kings Road, Quarry Bay
Hong Kong

24 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

S or WLk %

Year ended 31 December 2021 #E_ZT_—F+_B=+—HILEE
2021 2020
—EI-F —EZ-FF
Notes HKS$’000 HK$'000
Mifat FHET FET
REVENUE Yrzs 5 1,652,408 1,650,483
Cost of sales THE A (446,706) (467,996)
Gross profit EF 1,205,702 1,182,487
Other income and gains, net EHiik A RN > F%E 6 75,797 71,485
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHEY (1,061,332) (958,518)
Administrative expenses TGRS (189,460) (172,840)
Impairment of rightof-use assets EREEERE 18(a) (25,777) (47,608)
Other expenses HithFAx 7 (11,102) (34,851)
Finance costs BHE A 8 (10,211) (19,636)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX IsRauEF (&5i8) Q (16,383) 20,519
Income tax expense R8BI~ 12 (11,102) (23,343)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EATEE AEML
ATTRIBUTABLE TO FEHH
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (27,485) (2,824)
LOSS PER SHARE TATHEE ARG
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ShkiEsiE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 15
— Basic (HK cents) — B GB) (6.51) (0.67)
— Diluted (HK cents) — 58 (B1) (6.51) (0.67)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

S o3 28 Wk R

Year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE_ZT_—F+_B=+—HILEE
2021 2020
—E-F TETTEFF
HKS$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR EERFE (27,485) (2,824
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (EXPENSE) Hth2HEUIA ~(Fi%)
Other comprehensive income that may REBHABTIEEN N EEIRS
be reclassified to the income statement BNEMEEmE A

in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on franslation of ?ﬁ'%iﬁ?bé EFfEL Y
foreign operations RERE 61,760 147,297
REZBER AR ERDEE

BammEMKA (%) :

Other comprehensive income/ (expense)
that will not be reclassified to the income
stafement in subsequent periods:

Revaluation surplus

BRER 13,991 9,735
Deferred tax debited to asset revaluation REESEHEEHLRZ
reserve (note 2./) AEFRIE (FzE27) (3,498) (2,434)
Net other comprehensive income that will not RESIBASEH9EEELS
be reclassified to the income statement HEMEmW A SRR
in subsequent periods 10,493 7,301
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHMZEMA »
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX NrRRIE 72,253 154,598
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ZsAE)HEHE AFE(LEE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 2 MEUXA 4858 44,768 151,774
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

o W5 IR DLk

31 December 2021 —E_—&+_"_A=+—H

2021 2020
2§ CIZTTZ2F
Notes HKS$’000 HK$'000
Mzt FET FET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE ~ R KRB 16 1,034,948 1,122,637
Investment properties KREYE 17 520,563 448,193
Rightof-use assets EREEE 18(a) 174,863 190,053
Other asset Hith&EE 19 437,073 426,667
Deferred tax assets RILFIEE 27 72,107 71,255
Deposits and other receivables e R EMERERIE 22 20,782 23,544
Total non-current assets IERIEEMAE 2,260,336 2,282,349

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =z5 20 526,358 578,590
Trade receivables FEUL B S BEFR 21 51,943 67,060
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBIFRIE - & R EMBEWEIE 22 76,438 76,297
Tax recoverable Al EFRIE 11,066 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIES%EY) 23 378,636 425,149
Total current assets MEEEAE 1,044,441 1,147,096
CURRENT LIABILITIES B JI=RE]

Trade payables FE{T B ZER=N 24 33,976 35,591
Inferestbearing bank borrowings s+ ER{TER 25 57,887 101,625
Lease liabilities HEaE 18(b) 47,468 61,373
Tax payable FEAHRIE - 5,688
Other payables and accruals H e IE K fE st IE 26 197,221 204,766
Total current liabilities MENEEMEE 336,552 409,043
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEERE 707,889 738,053
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #EEREEIGE 2,968,225 3,020,402

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREIEE
Inferestbearing bank borrowings HEIRTTER 25 288,595 362,791
lease liabilities HEaE 18(b) 31,397 32,067
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEE(E 27 127,513 132,455
Other payables HhpE( =hiE 26 4,447 4,700
Total non-current liabilities JEREaERE 451,952 532,013
Net assets BEFE 2,516,273 2,488,389
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
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31 December 2021 —E_—&+_"A=+—H

2021 2020
2§ CIZTTZ2F
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
b3 F#ET FET
EQUITY i
Equity atiributable to owners of the AT ES AE(LEDS
Company
Share capifal Bg 7 28 4,224 4,224
Reserves =3 29 2,512,049 2,484,165
Total equity ‘BT 2,516,273 2,488,389
Ngok Ming Chu Cheng Pik Ho Liza
EEATk BEE
Director Director
BF EFF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2021 H#ZE—_E_—&F+_A=+—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

BARER AESL
Reserves
511
Enterprise
expansion
and
Share Asset statutory Share  Exchange
Share  premium Contributed revaluation  reserve opfion fluctuation  Goodwill  Retained Total Total
copitll  account  surplus  reserve funds  reserve  reserve  reserve profits  reserves equity
R BES CREERR ER K
2.3 HER BARS ffE AEHEE RRERE fifF HEHE RIEN ke mig
Noes  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
Mt FEr FEr FEr TEr TEr FEr  TEr  TEr  FEr  TEr TErn
[note 29) [note 29) [note 29)
(Hiz£29) (it 29) (Wit 29)
At T January 2021 RZB--5—F—H 4224 386,512 122,610 22,361 189,836 12 51,564 (3,168) 1,714,438 2,484,165 2,488,389
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - - - - (27485  (27.485) (27,485
Revaluation surplus BB 16 - - - 13,991 - - - - - 13,991 13,991
Deferred tax debited fo asset REESHHENRZ
revaluation reserve EIERE 27 - - - (3,498) - - - - - (3,498) (3,498)
Exchange diferences relaled o HEIEINEERTES Z
foreign operations ERER - - - - - - 61,760 - - 61,760 61,760
Total comprehensive income,/ ER2ERA/ (%)
[expense] for the year k] - - - 10,493 - - 61,760 - (27485 44768 44,768
2020 final dividend declored ERREN-E"5E
and paid FERS 14 N b - - - - - - (10,5600  (10,560)  (10,560)
2021 interim dividend “E_-FErfks 14 - - - - - - - - (8,448) (8,448) (8,448)
Equitysetfled share option ReEERRET
arangements 30 - - - - - 2124 - - - 2124 2124
Transfer from retained profifs BERERF - - - - 2,406 - - - (2,406) - -
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-F
+-B=+-H 4224 386512 122,610 32,854 192,242 213 113324 (3,168) 1,665,539 2,512,049 2,516,273
At T January 2020 RZZZZ5—F—H 4224 386512 122,610 15,060 189,101 - (95733 (3,168 1,730,669 2,345,051 2,349,275
Loss for the year FEER - - - - - - - - (2,824) (2,824) (2.824)
Revaluation surplus BfERE 16 - - - 9,735 - - - - - 9,735 9,735
Deferred tax debited fo asset REESHHENRZ
revaluation reserve FIERE 27 = = = (2,434) = = = = = (2,434) (2,434)
Exchange diferences relaled o HEIEINEERTES Z
foreign operations ERER = - - - - - 147,297 - - 147297 147,297
Total comprehensive income,/ ER2ERA/ (%)
[expense] for the year k] = = = 7,301 = - 147297 = (2,824) 151,774 151774
2019 final dividend declored BRRENZE-NE
and paid FERS 14 - - - = - - - - 126720 12672 (12,672
Equityseled share opfion REGRERETS
arangements 30 = = = = = 12 = = = 12 12
Transfer from refained profis BEREEF = - - - 735 - - - 733) - -
At 31 December 2020 RIZZSE
+-A=+-A 4224 386,512 122610 22,361 189,836 12 51,564 [3,168) 1,714,438 2,484,165 2488389

Annual Report %R 2021 / Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 A RAF]

81



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GOBeshiaf

Year ended 31 December 2021 H#EZE_E_—&F+_A=t+—HIEE

2021 2020
—g-—& —=-=&
Noftes HKS’000 HK$'000

HzE F#ET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES E&XFEZINEHE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI A=A, (B518) (16,383 20,519
Adjustments for: SHEE
Finance costs B A A 8 10,211 19,636
Bank interest income IRITHBUA 6 (4,889) (4,519)
Interest accretion on non-current receivables 3EEU,HHJ3§L|&%’XIEE’\]%UE¢DD 6 (1,991) (1,2171)
Covid-19-related rent concessions T HFE AR HE Covid-1
from lessors BIEEENESE §'B Q (818) (8,590
Equity-sefiled share option expense Pt BRI R 2,124 12
Depreciation of property, plant BEEEZITE
and equipment Q 80,306 76,585
Depreciation of rightof-use assefs FREEESEZITE Q 56,861 96,305
Gain on termination of leases #IFFE 2 W Q (357) (460)
Loss/(gain) on disposal /write-off of items of HE s - BER
property, plant and equipment, net REBEEZEE
(Lly ) 0 BEE Q (156) 385
Wirite-off of deposits &2 MisH Q 424 17
Provision for obsolete inventories, net (REFE M > %8 Q 59,184 54,372
Impairment/ (write-back of impairment) FEW B ZIERE
of tfrade receivables, net ([ClEi{E) @ 35 Q 979 (981)
Impairment of rightofuse assets EREEERE Q 25,777 47,608
Changes in fair value of investment properties & &Y% AT {EEH) 6 (3,072) 5618
208,200 305,296
Decrease/(increase) in inventories D (2 n) (6,952) 159,392
Decrease in trade receivables },@H&%%EEW\H’“ 14,138 |&,78S
Decrease in prepayments, TAfTRIE ~ s RHAME
deposits and other receivables FRIE R 4,188 22,070
Decrease in trade payables P&t B 5 IR AR D (1,615) (17,132)
Decrease in other payables and accruals H RN FUB M E st R IR D (7,798) (15,994)
Decrease in deferred liabilities EIE & ER D - (414)
Cash generated from operations KEPTISIRE 210,161 466,953
Overseas faxes paid BBIMRIE (38,794) (28,9306
Net cash flows from operating activities REEB IR RN PEE 171,367 438,017
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

3¢ ()

GABlEeia

Year ended 31 December 2021 #E-_E_—F+_H=+—HIEE
2021 2020
- —F ZTTEZTHF
Nofes HK$000 HK$'000
KtsE FHET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & EEZ2IREHE
Interest received BUF B 4,889 4,519
Purchases of items of property, BEYE - BEAREEE
plant and equipment 16 (11,230) (35,786)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME  BREMREER
property, plant and equipment ZFRS™IE 227 161
Increase in rightof-use assets AR EE (533) (263)
Net cash flows used in investing activities S EE) Y IR R R EE (6,647) (31,371)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES R EENZIRETHE
New bank borrowings B IRITERR - 62,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BIBIBITER (117,934) (155,764
Principal portion of lease payments HEMRZAE (78,782 (92,613
Dividends paid BEIIRE 14 (19,008) (12,672)
Inferest paid SRS (10,211) (20,8306)
Net cash flows used in financing activities B EH RS PRE (225,935) (219,885)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND HERIREZEM2Z
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1@, GRiL) ;358 61,215) 186,761
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNZRERIREEFEY
beginning of year 425,149 200,230
Effect of foreign exchange rafe changes, net PEEREB) g2 > HEE 14,702 38,158
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZAERAEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 378,636 425,149
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RERRE E@/MGERZ DN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e &IB1T4565 23 166,511 245,729
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity FREEARREIHEH &/ DR
of less than three months when acquired — @R 2 EIKREHRFER 23 212,125 179,420
Cash and cash equivalents as stated mraRT ARt
in the consolidated statement of cash flows B RESEEY 378,636 425,149
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2021 —E_—&+_"A=+—H

AT

1. Corporate Information 1.

34

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 29 August 2006
under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised| of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
the Cayman Islands and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 7th Floor, Wyler Centre I, 200 Tai Lin
Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 37 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal
activities during the year.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and
Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded tfo the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicafed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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31 December 2021 —E_—&+_"_A=+—H

2.1 %?‘Jﬁﬁﬁ(ﬁs)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continved)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred fo as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entfity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable retums from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
maijority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(o)  the contractual arangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are affributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-confrolling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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24%ﬂ£$ﬁ)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continved)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity fransaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises |i)
the assets [including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling inferest and {iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i)
the fair value of any investment refained and |iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in the consolidated income statement. The
Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assefs or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

— Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond

30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Amendment to HKFRS 16
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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2.2 GHBUREZH R @

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (continved)
The amendments to HKFRS @, HKAS 39, HKFRS /7, HKFRS 4

and HKFRS 16 are not relevant to the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements and the nature and the impact of
the amendment to HKFRS 16 are described below:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to
apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to
rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022, provided the other conditions for applying the practical
expedient are met. The amendment is effective retrospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with
any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendment
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting
period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January
2021 and applied the practical expedient during the year
ended 31 December 2021 to all rent concessions granted by
the lessors that affected only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2022 as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. A reduction in the lease payments arising from the
rent concessions of HK$818,000 has been accounted for as
a variable lease payment by derecognising part of the lease
liabilities and crediting to profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2021. There was no impact on the opening
balance of equity as at 1 January 2021.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments fo HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments fo HKFRS 17

Amendments fo HKAS 1

Amendments fo HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendment fo HKFRS 17

Amendments fo HKAS 8
Amendments fo HKAS 12

Amendments fo HKAS 16

Amendments fo HKAS 37

Reference fo the Conceplual Framework'
Sale or Confribution of Assets between
an Investor and ifs Associate or
Joint Venture®
Insurance Contracts?
Insurance Contracts? >

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-currenf* *
Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Initial application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction?
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Infended Use!
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract'

Annual Improvements fo HKFRSs ~ Amendments fo HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,

2018-2020

2022

2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41!

1 January

January
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No mandatory effective date yet defermined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments fo HKAS 1, Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
tfemporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong 2.3 A H g AR S 7 I

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to
be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The amendments also
add to HKFRS 3 an exception fo its recognition principle for
an entity fo refer to the Conceptual Framework to determine
what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRICHNt 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do
not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group
expects fo adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or affer the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by
these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in
HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or confribution of
assefs between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
resulting from o downstream fransaction when the sale or
confribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's inferest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available
for adoption now.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-Current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an
entity’s right to defer sefflement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the
reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that
date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise ifs right to defer seflement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a setflement of a liability. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied refrospectively. Earlier application
is permitied. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting policy
information rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if, when considered
together with other information included in an entfity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-
mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to
HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments on the Group's accounting
policy disclosures.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong 2.3 A H g AR S 7 I

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies. Accounting estimates are defined as monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entfities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitied. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception so that it no longer applies to
fransactions that give rise o equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tox asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or affer
1 Jonuary 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
fo leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at
that date. In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to fransactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and
did not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for temporary differences for transactions related to
leases. Upon initial application of these amendments, the
Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax
liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with rightof-use assefs and lease liabilities, and
recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment fo the opening balance of
refained profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
fo the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operafing in the manner infended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied refrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group's financial stafements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a confract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a confract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do nof relate directly to a confract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the confract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied fo confracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening equity at the date of initial
application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected fo have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 Issued But Not Yet Effective Hong

(Continued)

Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out

amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41
amendments that are expected to be applicable to
are as follows:

Examples

. Details of the

the Group

HKFRS 9@ Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a
new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the
entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Lleases: removes the illustration of payments
from the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in
llustrative Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This
removes potential confusion regarding the freatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration fransferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the
Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership inferests and entitle
their holders fo a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assefs. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
subsfantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability fo create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual ferms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition dafe. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured af its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
the income statement.

Any contfingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an assef or a liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent seftlement is
accounted for within equity.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity inferests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is
lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in the income
statement as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment fest of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
festing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected fo benefit from the synergies of the combination,
imespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is defermined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) fo
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit refained.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its invesiment properties at fair value af
the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received fo sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction fo sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an assef or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset fakes info
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the assef
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation fechniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

level 2 — based on valuation technigues for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assefs and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group defermines whether
fransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant fo the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continved)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

Embry Holdings Limited 2]

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i
i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one enfity is an associafe or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entfity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (al;

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent

of the entity); and
the entity, or any member of a group of which it is

a partf, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or fo the parent of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less cosfs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assefs or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-
generating unit for impairment, a porfion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset [e.g., a headquarters building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can be
allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
fo the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an assef exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a prefax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific fo the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
assefs.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
fo whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to defermine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been defermined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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Policies (continved)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than consfruction in
progress, are sfated af cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an ifem of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
affributable costs of bringing the asset fo its working condition
and location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
mainfenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criferia are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capifalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required fo be replaced at infervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assefs with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an
individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to
the income stafement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the income stafement fo the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset, the
relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred fo refained profits
as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis fo write off
the cost of each itfem of property, plant and equipment fo its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 3.3%

leasehold improvements 4.5% to 20%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10% to 20%

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
refirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and equipment
under consfruction, which is sfated at costf less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost,
including fransaction cosfs. Subsequent fo initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions af the end of the reporting period.

Cains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the refirement or disposal.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Other asset

Other asset is the right fo receive the new properties under a
relocation arrangement, further details of which are given in
note 19 to the financial statements. Such assef, being the
consideration to be received upon disposal of the original
properties under the relocation arrangement, is initially
recognised at its fair value. Subsequent to the initial
recognition, other assef is sfated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the
fransaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise fo cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Policies (continved)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assefs in order fo
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether
cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows,
selling the financial assefs, or both. Financial assefs classified
and measured af amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade dafe, that is, the date that the Group
commifs to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised [i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the assef have
expired; or

e the Group has fransferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to @
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor refained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has enfered into a passthrough arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has refained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
fransferred nor refained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues fo recognise the fransferred asset to the extent of the
Croup's confinuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and
the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Policies (continved)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECls are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective inferest
rafe. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral fo the contfractual terms.

General approach

ECls are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECls are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
inifial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective
of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. VWhen making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as af the dafe of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forwardHooking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
fo be in default when internal or external information indicates
that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
confractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assefs at amortised cost is subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECls except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified
approach as defailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECls

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not creditimpaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifefime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assefs that are creditimpaired af the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated creditimpaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
fo lifetime ECls

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating EClLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECls at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific fo the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as ifs
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
caleulating ECLs with policies as described above.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially af fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interestbearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised costf, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income sfatement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective inferest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or cosfs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
income stafement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
confracts that require a payment fo be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee confract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: {i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy
as sef out in “Impairment of financial assefs”; and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to seftle on a net basis, or to
realise the assefs and seftle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated af the lower of cost and net realisable
value after making due allowances for obsolete or slow-moving
items. Cost is defermined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on the estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs fo be incurred to
completion and disposal.
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(Continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continved)
Leases

The Group assesses at confract inception whether a confract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the confract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short+term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-ofuse assets

Rightof-use assefs are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Rightof-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of rightof-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
cosfs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assefs are depreciated on a
straightline basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Lleasehold land
Buildings

45 to 50 years
2to 11 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.
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(Continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continved)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Embry Holdings Limited 2]

Lease liabilities

lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rafe, and amounts expected
fo be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of pendalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option fo
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rafe are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
friggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Croup uses its incremental borrowing rafe at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accrefion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments [e.g., a change fo future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rafe) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

(Continued)

2.4 FRFEHBORE @)

Policies (continved)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption fo its shortterm leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
nof contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets fo
leases of office equipment and laptop computers that are
considered to be of low value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the
lease on a lease-by-lease basis.

lease payments on shortterm leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of ifs
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

leases in which the Group does not fransfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a confract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the confract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straightline basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the income stafement due to ifs operating nature.
Initial direct costfs incurred in negofiating and arranging an
operating lease are added fo the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying assef fo the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject fo an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assefs that
necessarily fake a substantial period of time to get ready for
their infended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assefs. The capifalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assefs are substantially ready for their infended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an enfity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
seffle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to seftle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)
Policies (continved)

Income tax FriiR

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax FriSiR B G BT EA AR IR I o Bt iBm R

relating fo items recognised oufside the income sfatement is DUSNESR 2 THE B R Z PRISIR SRS A H

recognised either in other comprehensive income or directly in e EU s TS B RS A o

equity.

Current fax assefs and liabilities are measured at the amount BIERTR IS E R B R » TR R F514

expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation BB PRGBS « UIRS

authorities, based on fax rates (and fax laws) that have been R8BI EBRNEEEEH 2R

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting R (JiE) - BERBAEEEFAEBER

period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices WiITz2ERIEHIMETE -

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all ESERIER 2RPRIZEREINEERE

temporary differences at the end of the reporting period BNREEM RGN REENEY

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their Ry EEAET R o

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary BIER TR & (BT PR A 8 SR B By 2 BR FE

differences, except: 58 0 WETFIBIERIN

*  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial s REBEHLUINZRZ (RZERIL
recognition of an asset or liability in a fransaction that is BmEAMRE G st s ERET
not a business combination and, at the time of the HEEE) T%ﬂfﬁ@?fﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
transaction, affects neither the accounting profif nor EXZIRIERIEAE
taxable profit or loss; and

®  in respect of taxable temporary differences associated s HWBABZREBMEMZERNG
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the RrE=2RMs > NERERZELE
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled BRI FiEdl » BERETRAS KA

and it is probable that the temporary differences will not 1E0] 78 B2k #E[a] o

reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tfemporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
any unused fax losses. Deferred tax assefs are recognised fo
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

®  when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a fransaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

®  in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the tfemporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised fo the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is seftled, based on fax rafes (and fax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current fax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or fo realise the assets
and setile the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be seftled or recovered.

Dividend income derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in
Mainland China is subject to a withholding tax under the
prevailing tax rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of

China ["PRC").

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
confrol of goods or services is transferred to the customers af
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects fo be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
or services fo the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncerfainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contfract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rafe that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the cusfomer at confract inception. When the
confract confains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction
price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease ferms. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Inferest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, fo the net carrying amount of the financial assef.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Contract liabilities

A confract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier] from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Confract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfer control of the related
goods or services to the customer).

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects fo develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible assef so that it will be available for use or sale, ifs
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
fo measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criferia is expensed when incurred.

Government grants

Government grants, including a subsidy for the expenditure
incurred in the construction cost of infrastructure projects, are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense ifem, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an
asset, the fair value is deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and released fo the income statement by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“Equity-settled Transactions”).

The cost of Equity-settled Transactions with employees is
measured by reference fo the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is defermined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in nofe 30 fo the financial statements.

The cost of Equity-Settled Transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for Equity-Setfled Transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit fo the income statement for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
info account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is
assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of
an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 R ARAT / Annual Report R 2021

(Continued)

2.4 FRFEHBORE @)

RIPETRR 5
KATHT—IEERESSE > EEEHEAK
EREFRINEFLEERMN G ERSHEER
MR KOE - ZEENES (BEES)
DUBRAD AT T U UR BN <& Eﬂf@ahﬁ%ﬁ&
HIEAERRATENRE (TRERS

1) °

HESETHREGERZHNETZ2E
RH BN AFESE - AFERINEBGE
BN TRENEE » E—PHBEHN
R ERAMIFE 30 ©

PRI E X Z AR RIR R, SR %
HERHEE REEEN R TR » Wik
[EEmBIAERIEI - RERSHARERSB
AL S B 32 5 FESR R 3R 51 2 [ BRER
BHEERNEERAERNRKEER
i TAHENREMS o MRRI@mE
BYSZ H Bl RIS IS X HA I P 4a e AS SR P R
OBV R TR EE) -

ARFS R I B RIR IR I E BRI H
BEAFERATER  BEIZFRM
AYRTSEMERISHE R T EE N R B BRIR
ATEHENREGSHN—HD - HHE
WFERIRE BIARTER R o 71
BypvEmE MR (BEMBREIRFZER) K
RASIEERBIRIT - IR BIRTEEBINA
FEP KR > WERRRE RIS S » BRIF
RIRFIERRTS K SRR o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

W 5 ¥t 2% Bl ek ca)

31 December 2021 —E_—&+_"_A=+—H

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the fransactions are treated as vesting
imespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-setiled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the fofal fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial fo the employee as measured at the date
of modification.

Where an equity-seffled award is cancelled, it is freated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
freated as if they were a modification of the original award,
as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continved)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of these employees' basic salaries
and are charged fo the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assetfs of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed info the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentages of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The confributions are charged fo the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Termination henefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring cosfs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting 2.4 F B FHHEOR I E @)

Policies (continved)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company'’s functional currency. Each entfity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on setlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
franslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item |i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or the income sfatement is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or the income stafement, respectively).

In defermining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
relafed assetf, expense or income on the derecognition of a
non-monetfary assef or non-monetary liability relating to an
advance consideration, the date of initial transaction is the
date on which the Group initially recognises the non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group defermines the fransaction date for each
payment or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

Policies (continved)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of cerfain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entfifies
are franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates that approximate fo those prevailing af the
dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are franslated info
Hong Kong dollars af the weighted average exchange rafes
for the year.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements 3. FEE B RMEH @

and Estimates (continved)

Judgements (continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered info commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the
arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a major
part of the economic life of the commercial property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments not amounting fo
substantially all the fair value of the commercial property, that
it refains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
identical fo ownership of these properties which are leased out
and account for the contracts as operating leases.

Clussification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the
Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to eamn rentals
or for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
fo determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does nof quo|ify as an investment property.

Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences as at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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and Estimates (confinved)

Judgements (continued) F &R (@)
Income tax (continued) FRiGHR (&)

As explained in note 27 to the financial statements,
withholding tax is levied on dividends to be distributed by
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008. Deferred tax is
provided, af the applicable withholding tax rate, on the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries that
would be distributed to their respective holding companies
outside Mainland China in the foreseeable future.

The Group's investment properties at fair value in Mainland
China are all held to eam rental income and/or for capital
appreciation and they are considered to be held within a
business model whose obijective is to consume subsfantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over fime, rather than through sale. Accordingly, deferred tax
on the Group's investment properties at fair value is measured
fo reflect the tax consequences of recovering the carrying
amounts of the investment properties through use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of esfimation uncerfainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Fair value estimation of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources, including:

(o)  independent valuations;

(b)  current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;
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(Continued)

3. Significant Accounting Judgements

and Estimates (confinved)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Fair value estimation of investment properties (continued)

(c)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and

(d) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the ferms of
any existing lease and other contracts, and (where
possible) from external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note
17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix fo calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rafes are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region and customer type.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forwardHooking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forwardHooking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECls is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the EClLs on the Group's frade receivables is disclosed in nofe
21 to the financial statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements 3. FEE B RMEH @

126

and Estimates (continved)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Inventory provision

The Group manufactures and sells goods and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends. As a result, if
is necessary to consider the recoverability of the cost of
inventories and the associated provision required. When
calculating the inventory provision, management considers the
nature and condition of inventories, as well as applying
assumptions around anticipated marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily defermine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
["IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay fo borrow over a similar
ferm, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value to the rightof-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that
do not enter info financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market inferest rafes) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than Other Asset)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all nonfinancial assets (including the rightof-use
assefs) at the end of each reporting period. Non-inancial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carmying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and ifs value in use. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements
and Estimates (continved)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment assessment of Other Asset (as defined in note 19)

As disclosed in note 19, Other Asset is the right fo receive the
new properties and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Under the annual impairment testing, an impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The Group
conducted the impairment assessment by comparing the nef
carrying amount of Other Asset with its fair value as
determined based on the valuation performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers and a method of valuation
which involved certain assumptions, including the gross unit
rate per square mefre. The assumptions used in the valuation
have involved significant management judgement.

Segment Information

The Group's primary operating segment is the manufacture
and sale of ladies’ brassieres, panties, swimwear, sleepwear
and others. Since this is the only operating segment of the
Group, no further analysis thereof is presented. In defermining
the Group's geographical information, the revenue information
is based on the locations of the customers, and the fotal non-
current asset information, other than deferred tax assets, is
based on the locations of the assets.

3.

(Continued)

FEAEHIE R A e

fast 2 R EARAEI & (8)
HitEE MR ETE (RERKEE9)

M EE 198 58 » HMBE ERZBTYE
BORER » R R AR FURE TR T BR ©
EETEERERNSE  BENREEE
BUpREEBBHEIWKEEE (BMEQ
FEAHENEREREBERNETHNRS
Z) R AEFEERE F~EERBLLRE
thEENREFEERBBIEEXSER
HEMETNEEEEN R TEURS R
ETRR (BREST A RHREME) Bl
B3 REITREE - MEFRARRI K
EXREEEHE -

o iR
FAEEZTELENBELTHE R
A8~ AR, BRI E At RS R IHE -
RIEARERZ E—EE D8 > WIES
SiE—Z 2D o REXREE Z @B
By > e BRI IRE P AR » 48
FERBEE (BLERIBEERIN ELHRE
EFRfER B ERE o

Mainland China Hong Kong Others Total
HEARE & Hth @5t
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZEI-§ ZZTTE ZRI-H TR ZRI-§ TST2F ZEI-F TZ20TF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F#m FET FET FET FET
Revenue from external SRE R 2 W
customers 1,602,751 1,595,581 45,168 43,020 4,489 11,882 1,652,408 1,650,483
Non-current assefs FERBEE 2,081,799 2,106,463 106,430 104,631 - - 2,188,229 2,211,094
Capital expenditure incurred FRNERRZ
during the year 10,754 36,948 476 38 - - 11,230 36,986

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, as no
revenue from sales to any customer of the Group has
individually accounted for over 10% of the Group's total
revenue, no information about major customers is presented

under HKFRS 8.
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5. Revenue 5. Wi
WADITIT :

An analysis of revenue is as follows:
2021 2020
—B—F "= FTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers HKEEF SIS
Sale of goods HEER 1,652,408 1,650,483
Revenue from contracts with customers KBEF ALK E
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information i) PEKEER
2021 2020
g ZZTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Business activities ¥i%EE
Concessionary counters SHEENE 1,051,230 1,025,801
Refail sfores BEEH 174,163 177,445
Internet and wholesale 48 _ESHE Rt B 422,526 435,355
Original design manufacturer ("ODM”) R EtEEm 4,489 11,882
1,652,408 1,650,483
Brands auhg
Embry Form ZFHITS 819,193 764,648
Fandecie INEF 341,477 375,081
Others EHih 487,249 498,872
ODM products ODME S 4,489 11,882
1,652,408 1,650,483
Products Efm
lingerie 4Pk 1425878 1435914
Sleepwear BT 159,834 156,989
Swimwear KR 47,174 38,836
ODM products ODME & 4,489 11,882
Other products HihE S 15,033 6,862
1,652,408 1,650,483
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5. Revenue (confinved)

(Continued)

5. Wi

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

REERGHBNE &

(i)

NEREER (@)
TRETEARSHAEDOWAE
3 AREERSHNGRNaRET
WSS EFERIFBTHNEAES
£

2021 2020
-8 ZTTEZTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue recognised that was included in AHYREEEENas
confract liabilities af the beginning of FEEsRAI U
the reporting period:
Sale of goods HESMm 22,011 29,334

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The Group sells goods directly to retail customers via
retail sfores, concessionary counters and internef. The
performance obligation is satisfied when the product is
transferred to the customers upon delivery of goods.
Payment of the fransaction price is due immediately
when the cusfomers purchase the goods. The payment is
usually seftled in cash or using credit cards.

The Group also sells goods to wholesalers. The
performance obligation is satisfied when control of the
products has been fransferred, being when the products
are delivered to the wholesalers and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the wholesaler's acceptance
of the products. The payment is generally due within one
month, extending up to three months for major customers,
from delivery, except for certain wholesalers, where
payment in advance is normally required.
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5. Revenue (continved)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(ii)  Performance obligations (continued)

As a practical expedient, the fransaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations (unsafisfied or

partially unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements because all the remaining
performance obligations in relation fo the sale of goods
are a part of confracts that have an original expected
duration of one year or less.

6. Other Income and Gains, Net

5. Wi
KEERGHNNE &

(il

BWEE &)

ERBTHNEEZS ) DEETFEHRT
BHEECRETHEDRET) B
R 5 B8 IR TE B 75 3R R MY 5 R
B hHRESmIBERRBAA
FTITERNSERRGTRPAMES—
FHATHEN—EED -

6. ILAMWA B Wi 0 i

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

2021 2020
- —F ZETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Other income Hittg A
Subsidy income* FEALIA * 37,586 37,448
Gross rentfal income from investment KEYEKSTHER
property operating leases: EE WA KRR :
Other lease payments, including HMBERIE » BEEERIE
fixed payments 18,221 16,513
Variable lease payments that do not NSNS EIw B
depend on an index or a rate o E=HIE 691 383
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 4,889 4,519
Interest accretion on non-current receivables  3EBNEAFE W R IBRYF] B1E H0 1,991 1,211
Gain on termination of leases KRIERE 2 W 361 460
Others Hh 4,241 5,033
67,980 65,567
Gains/(losses), net hss(385K) » B8
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER 38 4,745 11,536
Changes in fair value of investment REMEATEEE (W 17)
properties (nofe 1/ 3,072 (5,618
7,817 5918
75,797 /1,485

*

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to this income. &

ZERABRAE / Annual Report &3k 2021
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7. Other Expenses 7. HABH L
2021 2020
ZE-F TETE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Charitable donation e SEd 8,514 4,903

Loss/(gain) on disposal /write-off of items of H:'.E/}Fhﬁﬂﬁﬁ e

property, plant and equipment, net IHEZ BB (W) » P4 (156) 385
Wirite-off of deposits B 7 MiEE 424 17
Employee fermination benefits ST RS 2,248 29,546
Others Hih 72 -
11,102 34,851

Finance Costs 8. WM& A
2021 2020
—E—F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Interest on bank loans fEﬁTE FFE 6,193 14,849
Interest on lease liabilities IS TS 4,018 5,987
Finance costs incurred 4ERRE R AN 10,211 20,836
less: Inferest capitalised (nofe 16) B BRI B (K 16) - (1,200)
10,211 19,636
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Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

9. Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 9. BRBLAiRA (ki)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after NEBZBEMRATEF,(FIB) B0k (5
charging/(crediting): YR
2021 2020
—B—F "ZT°ZTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFE/RA * 446,706 467,996
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment BEIEEEZTE 80,306 76,585
Depreciation of rightofuse assets EREEEITE 56,861 96,305
Gain on termination of leases BIEFRE Z Wm (357) (460)
lease payments not included in the Tt AMHEESENHEERIE
measurement of lease liabilities (note 18(c)) (HtzE 18(c)) 306,823 272,353
Covid-19-related rent concessions from lessors % HF8 AIR{HEL Covid- 19515
HEENEERER (818) (8,590
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERMNMAx (FEEES
directors’ and chief executive's FATEUARE BN — M52 10) ©
remuneration — note 10):
Wages and salaries T & Kir® 481,466 425 542
Provision for long service payments RIABRB T RHE - 377
Retirement benefit scheme contributions* * * IBINEH TR > * > 53,472 19,282
Employee termination benefits BT HERmES 2,248 29,546
Equity-setiled share option expense IR H R IR R 1,533 12
538,719 474,759
Auditor’s remuneration Z BB = 2,538 2,488
Advertising and counter decoration expenses B & B EEEART 2 107,873 57,343
Provision for obsolete inventories, net REFEEE  $EE 59,184 54,372
Write-off of deposits Bz WisH 424 17
Impairment/ (write-back of impairment) of e BB SRR EURIE,
trade receivables, net* * (BSERE) » 7P5E <~ 979 (981)
Impairment of rightofuse assets EREEERE 25,777 47,608
Research and development expenditure MR HEE R 1,751 1,747
loss/(gain) on disposal /write-off of items of HE HEHYIE - R RER
property, plant and equipment, net EHEZ BB (K@) » FEE (156) 385
Foreign exchange differences, net ERER P (4,745) (11,536
Gross and net rental income B WA LERER TR (18,912) (16,890
Changes in fair value of investment properties & & Y2 A F(EE (3,072) 5618
Bank interest income IRTTA BULA (4,889) (4,519)
Interest accretion on non-current receivables IEREEWRIENF] 2 (1,991) (1,211)
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9. Proﬁt/ (Loss) Before Tax (confinued)

The cost of inventories sold for the year included
HK$ 197,791,000 (2020: HK$145,630,000) relating to
staff costs, c/epreciofion of manufacturing facilities and the
provision for obsolefe inventories, which is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed above for each type of

(Continued)

9. BBLRA, () @

* E%f?féﬁ@zk@fé‘,ﬁ_fﬁ@zk HiERE
MERKEFERG FHES
197,791,000 w( = & — & £F
145,630,000787T) ° BRI#EEEINE LA
LUE 1258 2 & ARAERART S A o

expenses.

** Impairment/|write-back of impairment] of trade receivables, net, *x mEI B SRR o E (B[Ol ) o SBAR
is included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the Bt A LS e kn (1TEEIZ ) A o
consolidated income statement.

*** There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the kO o e £ [ 4 (e o T B A U Y R B A 1t

Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of
confributions.

FOKFEIE R HRRL ©

10. 5 35 B 47 SRR 5

10. Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Remuneration

Directors” and chief executive's remuneration for the vyear,
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Llisting of

RBEBMERZFAARAE (TH3ZFT))
sex LA (TEWHARR) ~ EBRERF

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the FI1E383(1)(a), (b). (QIRME » LURAS) (%

"Stock Exchange”] (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b),

BESMmER) ROIFE 28 IFENT -
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits
of Directors| Regulation, is as follows:
2021 2020
B C"BETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Fees W& 1,074 1,074
Other emoluments: HAE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYN @ 12,642 9,630
Bonuses™* TEAL* 308 =
Equity-seftled share option expense IRt BB 591 3
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BIRREREH B 54 54
14,669 10,761

¥ EKAEBITEFBREIRZICAL 0 TTE
AT BRRII% A E B EFF B —E B
DILETE °

Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are defermined as a percentage of net profit of
the Group on a quarterly basis.
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10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 10
Remuneration (confinved)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services fo the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements. The fair value of the share options granted during
the last year, which has been recognised in the income
stafement over the vesting period, was defermined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

SRR AT BB )

EAQE_V _EE+__A=+—HLHE
= ?%%llﬁxﬁlk{ﬁﬁ&?‘ﬁﬂﬁ#&
RATERET EERBIRE  E—F5F
BEN MR EMFE30 - %EF“&&'.E’J
BRENATE(ERBBHREREE
WD) TH i B EREE - st AR
AR TREEE EXFIRENESRIT
BB R o

2021 —E-—F
Salaries, Equity-  Retirement
allowances seffled benefit
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees in kind Bonuses  expenses confributions remuneration
A
2R RiEGHE  BER
fig EBEVHE 4 BRERR R b
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
FHr Fir FHr Fi7 Fér7 FiEr
Execufive dlrectors: HITEE .
Mr. Cheng Man Taif BEREL - 3,456 24 162 18 3,660
Madam Ngok Ming Chu %Y T - 3,469 72 148 18 3,707
Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza** BEELLH - 3,661 107 139 18 3,925
Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BEREE - 740 21 3 - 794
Ms. Lu Qun Rzt - 1,316 84 76 - 1,476
- 12,642 308 558 54 13,562
Independent nonexecufive BUFHTEE .
direciors:
Mr. Lau Siv Ki ABERE 358 - - A - 369
Mr. lee Kwan Hung FOMEE 358 - - 11 - 369
Prof. lee T. S. FREHR 358 - - 1 - 369
1,074 - - 33 - 1,107
1,074 12,642 308 591 54 14,669
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10.Directors’ and Chief Executive’s 1035 B A7 BB M )
Remuneration (confinved)
2020 ot Jed 2 2
Salaries, Equity-  Refirement
allowances seffled benefit
and benefits share option scheme Tofal
Fees in kind Bonuses expenses  confribufions  remuneration
e
2E R REES  RHKEF
e  BYHE B BERERX  HEMER B

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THT THT THT T T THT

Execulive directors: HITEE !

Mr. Cheng Man Tai BERLE - 2,809 - | 18 2,828

Madam Ngok Ming Chu ER% LT - 2,952 - ] 18 2,971

Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza** BEELLH = 2,396 = | 18 2,415

Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen BEZTE - 567 - - - 567

Ms. Lu Qun Byt - 906 - - - 906

- 9,630 - 3 54 9,687
Indlependlent non-executive BUFHTEE:
directors:

Mr. Lau Siu Ki HBERSE 358 = = = = 358

Mr. lee Kwan Hung &3] enta 358 - - - - 358

Prof. lee T. S. FREHE 358 = = = = 358
1,074 = = = = 1,074
1,074 9,630 - 3 54 10,761

# Mr. Cheng Man Tai resigned as an executive director of the ¢ B ER —E - F " H—HEFT

Company on 1 February 2022. KRAEHITEEZ R -
WA Ms. Cheng Pik Ho Liza, a director of the Company, is also the W ENEEFEEEL LI EERATZ
chief executive officer of the Company. TTIEAEE, o

During the year ended 31 December 2020, in response to the REEZZZF+ZA=1+—HLE

adverse impact caused by the outbreak of Covid-19, the B> BEHCoid OB RIEZENE®m T

Group implemented an array of cost control measures. In order 2> XEFEBT T —ERNMAEEE

fo ride out the difficult times with employees of the Group, the Mo AEETNREELERER  AAT2EE

executive directors of the Company voluntarily reduced their HITESBREF /5% T -TF=

remuneration by 75% for a threemonth period from March to BEZZTZFHARM=@EA -

May 2020.

There were no arrangements under which a director or the BHE_Z S+ H=—+—HILEFEEW

chief executive waived or agreed fo waive any remuneration |EEWTHAES W SRRE BT #H

during the year ended 31 December 2021. B~ 225k ©
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11. Five Highest Paid Individuals 11

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2020: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 10 to the financial statements above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2020: two)
highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

SAEREBRN L

FRNAZRSHFALTEENZEES (ZE
TERF=R) HFMEBER EXE
%%%E%é&ﬁ%‘f 108 - FREGF—F (TF
TE I WB) IFERRANBEEHITELER
zﬁmﬁﬁﬁz#M£IWT:

2021 2020

—EI-F —EZE-FF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e N RALREYRE 1,201 2,393
Bonuses 1E4T 42 -
Equity-sefiled share option expense IR BRI 49 1
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRRERNEHEHE RN 98 Q9
1,390 2,493

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

#ENB IS LA T 4R 2 IFEFE R IF T &L
REHESAENT

Number of employees

ES A
2021 2020
—EBI—F TITTTHF

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

HK$ 1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000

HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,00

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,00
|

|
|
|
HK$3,000,001 to HK$ 3,500,000 |

= 1,000,000 87T -
1,000,001 72 Z 1,500,000587% 1 2
1,500,001 722 2,000,000 587% - -
BTTE 2,500,000 7 - -
7T 3,000,000 7 - -
3,000,001 7T E 3,500,000 - -

During the year ended 31 December 2020, share options
were granted to non-direcfor and non-chief executive highest
paid employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosure in note
30 fo the financial statements. The fair value of the share
options granted during the last year, which has been
recognised in the income sfatement over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements is included in the above
nondirector and non-chief executive highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.
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12. Income Tax

12

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year (2020: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated af the rafes of tax prevailing

Pt B

AR AERRNFER L EE

;%%% >
“EFE) o

BBELEMAE
WAL SRR BNSIRERE (T
H At 75 R =~

%ﬁIEEBtZK%@?%%%%&%EZ BRITRE

in the regions in which the Group operates. st&E o
2021 2020
ZEI-F EIEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Current — Mainland China BPHEAFR 1B — AR B A

Charge for the year FERRIE 10,500 23,062
Deferred (note 27) IRIE (K3 27) 602 281
Total tax charge for the year FEZ4NIEY H 11,102 23,343

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to
profit/(loss) before tax atf the statutory rates for the regions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are

MUARBERE KRB LB AT ZMitE
EEMEKRIRRANGN, (B8 stEZR
Hfx > BERABRMRESAEZRIER

domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as (5% BSEEDT
follows:
2021 2020
—R--F "ZT°ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax 5?% 2pE A, (B518) (16,383) 20,519
Tax at the applicable statutory rates BAEREKFE ZRIE (3,858) 6,069
Income not subject to tax %ZE\%%?FQZH&]\ (2,003) (5,085)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENGIE Y5 15,528 14,658
Tax losses utilised from previous periods A BT HAR IR IEE 18 (2,004) (437
Tax losses not recognised RIESDIRIER1E 2,584 7,645
Others Hh 855 493
Tax charge at the Group's effective rafe RAEEZEEREANEZ
RISz H 11,102 23,343
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13. Related Party Transactions
(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these

financial statements, the Group had the following material

(Continued)

13.HBENLZRS

FrzE MBI HMERFTd 2 225 -
FEERFREFFEALETZEX

(a)

fransactions with related parties during the year: THUF .
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$ ‘000
Mzt FHET FET
Continuing transactions FFERX
Purchases of fumiture and decoration EIRAE A B BB E R
services for counters and shops [ &8 2 R R B AE AR TS
as well as different types of MR &R A
moulds from related companies (i) 19,280 8,774
Rental expenses for a warehouse KABEFHEEEZ
charged by a director of the Company  FA&RX (i) 336 336
Notes: Mfat -

(i) The purchases of fumiture and decoration services for
counters and shops as well as different types of moulds from
ZBERTERER (R BIRAF (Duosiwei Metal &
Plastic Products (Shenzhen) Co., lid.) and & % B4ESKE
& 8 T 12 B R 2 8 [Changzhou Duosiwei Fumiture
Decoration Construction Co., lid.), related companies
controlled by Mr. Cheng Chuen Chuen, an executive
director of the Company, and ¥ BAEEZ (RII) BRA
&) (Xinsiwei Indusiry (Shenzhen) Co., lid.], a related
company controlled by close family members of Mr. Cheng
Chuen Chuen, an executive director of the Company, were
made according fo the terms similar fo those offered by the
Group's independent suppliers. The balances owed to
related companies as at 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$10,792,000 (2020: HK$7,097,000) and were
unsecured, interestfree and repayable in accordance with
normal frading terms. The amounts have been included in
other payables and accruals as at the end of the year.

[i)  The renfal expenses were charged by Madam Ngok
Ming Chu, an executive director of the Company, and
determined with reference to the then prevailing market
conditions.

The obove fransactions consfitute confinuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the listing
Rules and their details are disclosed in the report of the
directors.

The directors are of the opinion that the above
fransactions were conducted in the ordinary course of
business of the Group.
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13. Related Party Transactions (confinved) 13. 653N LS @)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the () EBFEEEASZFHM
Group
2021 2020
—g_—-F "EZT_TF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Short term employee benefits FRHAE SRR 16,113 12,374
Postemployment benefits B BT 257 189
Equity-seffled share option expense RS H AR 606 3
Total compensation paid to T FEEEEAS 2 4EFEN
key management personnel 16,976 12,566

Further details of directors’ and chief executive's

EERITHABEF NI IBEE I/

remuneration are included in note 10 fo the financial BERRMEE 10 -
statements.
14. Dividends 14/ 8
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ ‘000
FET FET
Dividends paid during the year: FRHEMRE :
Final in respect of the BE_Z_EHF+_"_HA=+—H
financial year ended 31 December 2020 IEBREERARE
— HK2.5 cents per ordinary share — BiRE®R 2.5
(2020: Final in respect of the (CEIEF  BE_ENF
financial year ended 31 December 2019 +ZBA=+—HBIMBFERHA
— HK3.0 cents per ordinary share| §E — SREER3.08M) 10,560 12,672
Interim — HK2.0 cents (2020: Nil) HEARR B — IR E @R 2.0781U
per ordinary share (ZBZZF  H) 8,448 -
19,008 12,672
The board of directors of the Company does not recommend ZK’Z}E%%%’Z:E%%‘;@%Ek%_g: F
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 +TZR=+—BHLEFEZFRPRE

December 2021.
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15. Loss Per Share Attributable to 15 4 A u) BEA N REA B 1 a5 1H
Owners of the Company
(a) Basic (o) Bz
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on: BREAREELIZU TN EETE
2021 2020

B —F _—ZT_FF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET
Loss K548
Loss attributable to owners of the Company, FRREtESREREE
used in the basic loss per share calculation AT A AFEILEE (27,485) (2,824)
Number of shares
B E R
2021 2020
Shares {5

Number of ordinary shares of the Company st EAA T EREAREE
in issue, used in the basic loss per share FTR 2 FEARBEET

calculation TIERg 422,416,638 422,416,638
Basic loss per share [HK cents) SREAREE GBI (6.51) (0.67)
(b) Diluted (h) ##F
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per BE_T_BERF_—F+T
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 B=+—HLFE BkEARE
December 2021 and 2020 in respect of a dilution as ER B HIt > AFEE I EAEFRR
the impact of the share options has antidilutive effect on £§'J1§H BAREIEAREE o

the basic loss per share amounts presented.
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. P93¢ ~ W3 Pe i thi
Furniture,
fixtures
leasehold ~ Plontand  and office Motor  Consfruction
Buildings  improvemenls  machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Totol
il 5B
fgnE BER  RMAZ
¥ & & i AE EEIR gt
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Fi#n F&n Tén Ti#n &7 T#n T#n
2021 E-f
Cost: A
At 1 Jonuary 2021 RZ%_-F-B-H 988,037 3,690 311,908 351,290 11,546 152 1,667,233
Additions HE - - 2131 7316 - 1,783 11,230
Disposals/wrileoff e /s - - (63) (1,831) (1,555 - (3,449)
Tronsfers e - - 66 1822 - (1,888) -
Transfer fo invesiment properfies BRERENE (M)

note o] (49,703) - - - - - (49,703)
Exchange redlignment EQER 23,364 - 7525 8,163 169 3 39,224
At 31 December 2021 RIE-F+ZA=1-H 962,248 3,690 321,567 366,760 10,160 50 1664525

Accumuloted depreciaion: ZihE:
At 1 Jonuary 2021 R-E_—£-F-H 137,627 3,690 116,855 275,541 10,873 - 544,586
Provided during te yeor R 2093 - 26,032 3979 359 - 80,306
Disposals/wiiteolf HE /s - - 62) (1,821) (1,495) - (3,378)
Transfer fo invesiment properfies BRERENE (M)

[note o] (5,292) - - - - - (5,292
Exchange redlignment EQER 3491 - 3,090 6,614 160 - 13,355
At 31 December 2021 RIE—F+ZA=1-H 156,762 3,690 145,915 313313 9,897 - 629,577

Net book value: RESE:
At 31 December 2021 RIBT—E+ZA=1-H 805,536 - 175,652 53,447 263 50 1,034,948
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. 93 ~ iz B ik i (=)
(continued)
Funiture,
fixures
leasehold ~ Plontond ~ and office Mot Conshucion
Buldings  impovemens  machinery  equipment veficles ~ in progess Tolol
fifl B
HEME BER  RHAE
BF B e % AE REIR st
HKY000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$1000  HKS000  HK$000
A7 TAr T#7 7 TE#r TEr FEr
2020 - 5
Cost: A
At 1 Jonuary 2020 RIE-TE-fA-A 900,654 3600 255315 318,512 11763 76221 1,506,155
Addiions HE - = 4165 7,900 = 28721 35,786
Finance cosis capifalsed RENAERL = = = = = 1200 1,200
Disposals/writeoff HE /s - - (1,299) (5,309) 654] (60) 7,318
Transfers & 52,908 = 36,454 11,578 4 (100,944 =
Transfer o invesiment properties BRTRENE (Wio)

[note o] (20,120} = = = = = 20,120)
Exchange realignment ERAE 55,195 - 17,273 18,605 433 14 91,520
At 31 December 2020 2 I e 088,03/ 3,690 311,908 351,290 11,546 152 1,667,223

Accumuloted depreciion: ZitiE
At 1 January 2020 RZEZEE-F-H 111,198 3,690 90,125 231112 10,568 = 446,693
Provided during te yeor EREE 19139 - 21613 35,300 533 - 76,585
Disposals/writeoff HE /s - - (1.271) (4,870) (631 = 6,772)
Transfer o invesiment properties BRERENE (W)

[nofe o [309) - - - - - (309)
Exchange realignment ERAE 7599 - 6,388 13,999 403 - 28,389
At 31 December 2020 RZZZEF+ZA=1-H 137,62/ 3,690 116,855 275,541 10,873 = 544,586

Net book value: RESE
At 31 December 2020 e S i 2 o el 851,010 = 195,053 75749 673 152 1,122,637
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment
(continued)
Notes:

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group rented
out certain floors of its owner-occupied properties to an
independent third party for rental income. At the date of change
in use, this property became investment property. Upon the

16. 193¢ ~ W5 Pt

et -

(o) ®E_ZT_—HF+"_A=+—HILFE"
$$Ir‘ﬂ%1%_ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁ¥%¥$§
J'L/(LBZH%H%H&U\ RERRIESE

P RENEUS/REDE - E%%

transfer from property, plant and equipment of ﬂﬂﬁ%&%ﬁﬁ%ﬂfél,él L0008 T (28
HK$44,411,000 (2020: HK$19,811,000) and T 19,811,00087T) MEAEEE
corresponding right-of-use land of HK$1,357,000 (2020: 2:!:%?.%1,357,0005%77:( TTRF
HK$791,000) to investment properties, this property was 1,000 78 7T) BRI EY 2R » 25
revalued at HK$59,759,000 (2020: HK$30,337,000) with %%%ETE?% 59,759,000&m (=2 =
a revaluation surplus of HK$13,991,000 (2020: = 4F 1 30,337,000/ 7T) » MEGHEER
HK$9,735,000) credited to the asset revaluation reserve. 13,091,000 7w( — & — & F:
9,735,000 7T) 5t AB E B LR o
(b) At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's buildings with a b)) MRIBEZ—EF+"B=+—H' &&=
net carrying amount of approximately HK$2,613,000 (2020: BTEFFEEN2,613,000ET(ZE
HK$2,714,000) were pledged to secure general banking BE 2714 OOO/%TE) EBERESET
facilities granted to the Group (note 25). N EE ) — M IR1T R & B ¥ R (I 5
25) o

17. Investment Properties

17 5 E W%
2021 2020

B "EEHF
HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—BZiREE 448,193 403,126
Changes in fair value (notes 6 and 9) NFEEE) (HfE6 K% Q) 3,072 (5,618)
Transfer from property, plant and BEEYE ~ BB AN
equipment and rightof-use land (nofe 16) {ER#E M (BifsE 16) 59,759 30,337
Exchange realignment PE 2 S EE 9,539 20,348
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZRA=+—HZRHE 520,563 448,193
The Group's investment properties are situated at 6th Floor, REEZREMEDRUNE B AR
Wyler Centre Il, 200 Tai lin Pai Road, Kwai Chung, New KEHFEBE2005REmP 028618 »
Territories, Hong Kong, at No. 508, Kunming Road, Yangpu Emi5EE ERRRE 508 5t K R & N
District, Shanghai, the PRC, and certain floors of the building MILEABFEE 250 ZAESE TIEE °
located at 259 Hehaixi Road, Xinbei District, Changzhou, the FEEZKREYEHRBEPIRABELAES °

PRC, respectively, and are held under medium term leases.
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17. Investment Properties (confinved)

At 31 December 2021, the Group's investment property
situated in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$91,000,000
(2020: HK$86,000,000) was pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (nofe 25).

The Group's investment properties situated in Hong Kong and
Mainland China were revalued on 31 December 2021
based on valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield
Limited ("CWL"), independent professionally qualified valuers.
Valuations were based on the capitalisation of net rental
income derived from the existing fenancies with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the properties, or
where appropriate, with reference to comparable market
transactions and evidence and taking into consideration
adjustments that reflect differences in transaction timing,
location and tenure.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. Management discusses
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed for financial reporting.

There has been no change from the valuation technique used
in prior years. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary defails of which are included
in note 18 fo the financial statements.
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17.88M¥E @
NFEBEZR

17. Investment Properties (confinved)

Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 were estimated by using
significant unobservable inputs and the fair value
measurements were categorised under level 3.

Reconciliation of fair value measurement categorised within

RIB_—F+"RA=+—HKZF"%F
F+ZA=1T—8 ' xEEUEARTIH
HZMAMRGF ZREYMEZ A TEBER
ATEBESAEDERE=HRET °

RATEBESRE=ZHRADEZATEE

level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: STEHER
Hong Mainland
Kong China
- REIARE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 A ZETZE—FB—HZEREE 86,000 317,126
Changes in fair value recognised in N R

the income stafement NFEEES - (5,618
Transfer from owner-occupied properties R ¥ (LAY (W 16)

[note 16) = 30,337
Exchange realignment bE DI EER - 20,348
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and A _ETEFE+"A=1+—HN

at 1 January 2021 —E_—F—HB—HZKREE 86,000 362,193
Changes in fair value recognised in R &R Z

the income statement NEBEEH 5,000 (1,928)
Transfer from owneroccupied properties BB R (LB (K 16)

[note 16] - 59,759
Exchange realignment AR - 9,539
Carrying amount af 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+"B=+—H

ZREE 91,000 429,563
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR o F—REAF R ESEEHAT

measurements between level 1 and level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nlil). HCEIZFE M) o
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17.88M¥E @

17. Investment Properties (confinved)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) N ey

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the UTFALEBY2HEEREES FLREE

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: EABIE R .

Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs
MELR fh{ES* EXRFAHRRBARE FoBREARRER
2021 2020
“EI-F EFTTH

Hong Kong Market comparable Cross unit rafe HK$3,500 to HK$3,300 to
— Commercial properties method per square foot HK$3,600  HK$3,400
— level 3 (note i)

B MIBLEBUE BT HFRBEMERE  3,500#7TE 3,30087TE
— BRAYE (st i) 3,600#5t  3,400#7T
— B=®

Mainland China Income capitalisation  Capitalisation rate 2.5% to 2.5% to
— Commercial properties approach per annum (nofe i) 8.25% 8.25%
— level 3

R AR WABEREE SEERCEK (Wati) 25%F 2.5% %
— BAYE 8.25% 8.25%
— F=4

Notes: Wizt :

ST HREENBEEES

The higher the gross unit rate per square foot, the higher the fair NEEHES o

value.
ii.  The higher the capitalisation rate per annum, the lower the fair i BEEX XS » AFEBE
value.

18. Leases 18.F &

146

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of office
premises and sfores used in its operations. Lump sum payments
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners
with lease periods of 45 to 50 years, and no ongoing
payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.
leases of office premises and stores generally have lease terms
between 2 and 11 years. Generally, the Group is restricted
from assigning and subleasing the leased assefs outside the
Croup. There are several lease confracts that include extension
and fermination opfions and variable lease payments.
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18.Hl8 =
FEBEAFRBA &

18. Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)  Right-of-use assets (o) (FEREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's rightofuse assefs AEBERNFEARSENERER
and the movements during the year are as follows: SEUT :
Leasehold
land Buildings Total
AL 18F Hazt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2020 N _E_ZF—HF—H 135,225 158,156 293,381
Additions =1 - 49,030 49,030
Transfer o investment properties BB EIREYIE (HfzF 17)

[note 17) (791) - (791)
Termination of leases HKIFFRE = (17,558) (17,558)
Depreciation charge HEER (3,625) (92,680 (96,305)
Impairment charge HEER - (47,608 (47,608
Exchange realignment FE R A% 7,031 2,873 9 004
At 31 December 2020 AETFE+"FA=1—H

and 1 January 2021 rk—Z_—%—F—H 137,840 52,213 190,053
Additions wE - 67,545 67,545
Transfer to investment ERE B

propetties [nofe 17) (Kz%17) (1,357) - (1,357
Termination of leases BIFRE - (3,572) (3,572)
Depreciation charge HEER (3,926) (52,935) (56,861)
Impairment charge REER - (25,777) (25,777)
Exchange realignment BB 7 5B %8 2,993 1,839 4,832
At 31 December 2021 W E2E_—F+_A=+—H 135,550 39,313 174,863

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group's right-of- RN_E_—F+_B=1+—H =&
use land with a net carrying amount of approximately %%EEE%@%’\]] 2,214,000t (=
HK$12,214,000 (2020: HK$12,685,000) was “E412,685000E 7w NE
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to :F@ﬂﬂ&j:iﬁla?&ﬁaﬂf%ﬁ—?ﬁﬁ
the Group (note 25). BN —AER1TRIE AR (EE25) o

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the BT —#+_"_BA=+—HIt
impairment loss of HK$25,777,000 (2020: Ef BEEE25,777,00087T (=
HK$47,608,000) represented the write-down of the BZZFE I 47,608,00087T) I5H
carrying amount of right-of-use assets for certain R R K& Covid- 19 1R 8 & M F £
underperforming stores to their recoverable amounts HEEERR > BRETRREXE
because the market conditions and the impact affer the EHNERAEEENKREERARE

outbreak of Covid-19 were out of management's HoEl£E e W _T-_—F+_
expectation. The estimated recoverable amounts as at A=+—H0 st REZEH IR
31 December 2021 were determined based on their BEAMRXRI4%EENFERERE

BE(CEIZF14%)

value in use amounts estimated by using discount rate of

14% (2020: 14%).
wzparAs 147
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18. Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

18.HE @
FEREAEBA #®)

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the

movements during the year are as follows:

HE&E

FRHEERNREEREHNT :

2021 2020
—EC-F EBCEF
HKS’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—RA—HREE 93,440 159,110
New leases mHEE 67,012 48,765
Termination of leases RIEFE (3,929) (18,018)
Accretion of inferest recognised FRRESRA R0
during the year 4,018 5,987
Covid-19-related rent concessions TEHFE AR MHE Covid-19
from lessors BEEENEEER (818) (8,590
Payments (NEN (82,800) (98,600)
Exchange realignment GRS 1,942 4,786
Carrying amount at 31 December K+ZA=+—HKmE 78,865 93,440
Analysed into payable: DT AR
Within one year —F R 47,468 61,373
In the second year = 21,838 21,862
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=FhF (BEEEFE) 9,004 7,560
Beyond five years B A 555 2,645
78,865 93,440
less: Current portion B L mENER D (47,468 (61,373
Non-current portion IERENEZ D 31,397 32,067
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEEaERERD RN FEER R
nofe 35 to the financial statements. 354 o

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
eligible rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases
of certain buildings during the year.

FEBHFAETEFHEELAA
MTHMECEREERREAR
THREE
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18. 08 @»

18. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued) FEBEAEBA®
()  The amounts charged/(credited) in the income statement in () RUkzEERIOE (Gt A) R E48EE
relation to leases are as follows: FIEWH -
2021 2020
—EZ—F —IZT°ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNE 4,018 5,987
Depreciation charge of rightofuse assets  {FREEETERX 56,861 96,305
Expense relating fo shortterm leases FEHATE SRR X 302,545 269,352
Variable lease payments nof included in st ATREEETER
the measurement of lease liabilities AEEENR 4,278 3,001
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHHEARMHEE Covid-19
from lessors BIEEENEEER (818) (8,590
Impairment of rightofuse assets EREEERE 25,777 47,608
Total amount recognised in the income RUR R TR SBARER
statement 392,661 413,663
(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 33(c) () FEEIRSRHLENREHRRNTE33()
to the financial statements. HFE o
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18. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its invesiment properties note 17) consisting
of commercial properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
and part of its owner-occupied staff quarters, under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require
the fenants fo pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according fo the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was HK$18,912,000 (2020: HK$16,896,000 ),
details of which are included in note 6 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

18.Hl8 =

FERSEHEA

FEBRFCEHELRHHEREREYE
(FzE17) > BEEBRPBEAMAE A
MEKRBMPERYEEIRES - HERKRN
BEEREPZMFRES > WREERARY
RITHRETEIEERE - KEEFRN
BEREEWAT8,912,0008TL(ZFZ
T4 1 16,896,000787T) » BRAFIEEN
FATSERARMIEE G ©

R TE—F+"HA=+—80"Fx&EER
*XEHFWFE?FE—%EEJE Z AR HEEEEME
EMRWCRASIRFAE MR T ¢

2021 2020

—EZ-F ECEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

Within one year —FR 23,458 17,448
After one year but within two years —FBEmERN 19,008 16,471
After two years but within three years _FBE=FRN 15,830 10,594
After three years but within four years —FBEBNERN 10,994 6,752
After four years but within five years MEREBRFEA 7,457 3,450
After five years HER 9,307 1,603
86,054 56,318
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19. Other Asset 19. HAfth & &

In accordance with the requirements of the Shenzhen City's
urban development plan issued by the Shenzhen City Luohu
District Town Re-development Bureau (5R3)I|T 2848 & 3k 7 24T
&), on 23 October 2017, Embry (China) Garments Lid.
("Embry SZ"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a relocation compensation agreement and a
supplemental relocation compensation agreement (collectively
known as the “Relocation Compensation Agreement”) with
Shenzhen Huiren Jewelry City Investment Limited (FRYIITIE1Z
KREWIEERRAE), a company established in the PRC and
an independent third party developer (the “Developer”) in
order to implement a renewal plan by demolishing and
rebuilding in the Buxin Industrial Area, Shenzhen, the PRC. The
details of the Relocation Compensation Agreement are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 25 October 2017
According to the Relocation Compensation Agreement, Embry
SZ shall surrender ifs lond use right and ifs properties situated
in the Buxin Industrial Area (the “Original Properties”). The
Developer, in retum, agreed fo (i) compensate Embry SZ with
new properties in a form of new industrial research and
development buildings (FZYEXMHZE AR RELER ) on
a piece of industrial purposed land with an area similar to that
of the Original Properties to be developed and built by the
Developer (the “New Properties”); (i) compensate Embry SZ
the cost of land use right of the Original Properties, rental cost
for Embry SZ to lease properties during the move out period
and other costs related fo the Relocation Arrangement (“Cash
Compensation”), which are payable by the Developer up to
the end of the move out period; and (iii) sell extra properties at
a new building to be consfructed in the Buxin Indusfrial Area,
Shenzhen, the PRC (“New Building”) to Embry SZ, whereby
the price and area of such properties at the New Building
shall be subject to further negotiation between Embry SZ and
the Developer (collectively known as the “Relocation
Arrangement”).

Embry SZ has moved out from the Original Properties in the
prior years and signed the properties fransfer confirmation (&
B E) with the Developer on 30 November 2017
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BEARBLIERIYE (TRYE)) &
FER: T HUfEFAHE - SR A TLULR) = (i) FR (8
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19. Other Asset (continved)

20

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

To the best of the knowledge, information and belief of the
Company's directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
the Group does not expect any obstacles fo receive the New
Properties and the Cash Compensation from the Developer.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
derecognised the property, plant and equipment and prepaid
lease payments. According to the terms of the Relocation
Compensation Agreement and the property transfer
confirmation, the Group also recognised the fair value of the
right to receive the New Properties ("Other Asset’) as “Other
Asset” and the receivables in relation to Cash Compensation
during the year ended 31 December 2017. Other Asset is
initially recognised at its fair value and subsequently carries at
cost less impairment.

At 31 December 2021, the carmying amounts of Other Asset
and receivables in relation to Cash Compensation under the
Relocation Arrangement were approximately
HK$437,073,000 (2020: HK$426,667,000) and
HK$15,306,000 (2020: HK$23,951,000) (note 22),

respectively.

As at 31 December 2021, the recoverable amount of the
Other Asset has been determined based on fair value
according to the valuation by using direct comparison method
performed by CWL, an independent professional qualified
valuer. The valuation was dependent on cerfain significant
unobservable inputs including gross unit rate per square metre
with a range of RMB36,800 to RMB46,000 (2020:
RMB35,000 to RMB44,000) and an annual discount rate of
4.75% (2020: 4.75%). The fair value measurement was
categorised under level 3.

(Continued)

19. H{h & 5 =

BERBDERFH -G EEHERFR

A~ BEKRREE ZK%I%E,HH%%JE%JH&
B R RIREHERN S HIREAER o
BEZ—tE+_RA=+—HLFE">

REBRILFESYE « BB k& RTEAN
HEMREREE - RERBHEHZEKRE
EBREREMRT ZEERBEE_T
—tE+-RA=+—HLEFEFRER=®
WSS T =R R (TEMEE)) B9
AFE > REWIREMHE HMEEDD
BHNTERSY » HRRMARBEAR

A— = —
_=_

—&F+"B=+—H HtEE
KB BAMBLZ PR mMERYGRIERE
B AIA437,073,0008 T (T2 2FF !
426,667,0007%7T) K 15,306,000 & 7T (=
TTEF [ 23,951,000%7T) (FizE22) ©

A— T —
N

—F+"A=+—H’ > HthEE
WA WREIEEEENBULEEZGERGEE
TR R TR EREBAETHEER
AFEEE - HERRRETEATIH
KZMAHE > SESTARREAEREE
AR#36,800E AR 46,000 (ZFZ
ZHF AR¥35000& A K 44,000)
REMB RIS ZZEZ R F:
4.75%) o R BESFEVENRE=RE
Ko

Inventories 20. 1+ 88
2021 2020
ZEI-F TCIEH
HKS$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Raw materials By 39,273 43,412
Work in progress EE S 45,774 43,218
Finished goods gy 441,311 91,960
526,358 578,590
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21. Trade Receivables 21. JEW 5 X

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for wholesalers, where payment in advance is
normally required. The credit period is generally for a period
of one month, extending up to three months for major
customers. The Group seeks fo mainfain strict confrol over ifs
outstanding receivables by the sales department to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's frade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over ifs trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interestbearing.

An ageing analysis of the Group's frade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

FEBTEUEERTLAEERENTE
B E—REERMEEALNR - EE
B—RA—EA > TEEFEEEIE
EE=(ER - NEEZHERBRIERWZ
FEWRIE » LUBE(E B AR - SRS ERH
SREEEE M o &N EXFrit ks
ERCRREZERIRZTIEZERE
BERPAMREZ  WUEEFEBEER

JR\B o ZNEE [0k HL AR WK B 57 BR AR AS B
h*ﬁ‘Eﬁ?ﬁE}%uIJZHTJ@T:CT}JD%E? i o F&
B Z AL AR ©

FAEERRSHEEEH 2 BIRE Z RN
RIBERHRZERE DA ¢

follows:
2021 2020
ZEI-F EIEH
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Within Q0 days Q0 HW 50,103 65,515
91 to 180 days Q1&180H 1,840 1,545
181 to 360 days 181 2360 H 1,891 Q08
Over 360 days 360HBL E 3,718 3,722
57,552 71,690
less: Impairment allowance L ORER (5,609) (4,630
51,943 67,060

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of frade
receivables are as follows:

EWE ZRRZ BIREHEEFINT -

2021 2020

—E—-§ CZZTE=HF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

1 January m—HA—H 4,630 5,611
Impairment/ (write-back of impairment) B, (BEEIRIE) fD

recognised, net (nofe 9) THER (M Q) 979 (@81)

At 31 December N+=-BA=+—H 5,609 4,630
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21. Trade Receivables (continved) 21 JE W B W o)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date RERSHBRBBREESETRED
using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates Mo EtETEEAEERE c BEXDER
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer BEmLBEER N2 EE e H5EAaR) (B
segments with similar loss patterns [i.e., by geographical MIBEE KR EER) aER R EET o
region and customer type). The calculation reflects the ZETE MO ARINEER «  EEFER
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and RERSHPTENEBBESE - ER1F
reasonable and supportable information that is available af the R AR IR ATERAN SRR AR E R

reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure LUFEYEAEEENE IR G R
on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: BHEENEERENER
As at 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—-%+-H=+—H
Past due
am
Tto3 3t09 Over 9
Current months months months Total
EPE 1E3ER 3IE9EAR EBiBIEA it
EClrate FEHEEREX 0.05% 1.13% 97.57% 100.0% 9.75%
Gross carrying amount [HK$'000]  BRETAE(E (T37T) 50,103 1,840 1,891 3,718 57,552
ECLs {HK$'000) BHREESE (T 25 21 1,845 3718 5,609
As at 31 December 2020 RZZE-FHE+-A=+—H
Past due
pnget
103 3109 Over 9
Current months months months Total
fiER 1E3EA 3Z9EB BBEOER 45t
ECL rate BHEEEEX 0.06% 1.42% 03.28%  100.00% 6.46%
Gross carrying amount [HK$'000)  BREI4E(E (Ti57T) 65,515 1,545 908 3,722 71,690
ECLs [HK$'000) FHEERE (FET) 39 22 847 3,722 4,630
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22. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 22 PR ~ $5 45 B A A RE WY

Receivables e
2021 2020
—g_—-F “TE_ZTF
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET TFET
Deposit paid and related direct cost WHE LR T e ST
for the land use right in Shandong BREREMERZER 9,944 9,707
Deposits for acquisition of items of B ~ BRE MR EIEE
property, plant and equipment [SANE: & 2,840 2,748
Prepayments SN 21,825 20,544
Receivables in relation to Cash BRAMEBLZHNIREmME
Compensation under the Relocation FEWGRIE (a2 19)
Arrangement (note 19) 15,306 23,951
Deposits and other receivables & R HAMEUGEIR 47,305 42,891
97,220 99,841
Current portion included in prepayments, FTATEIIIE ~ e R HM
deposits and other receivables P& WGRRIE 2 BIERER (7 (76,438) (76,297)
Non-current portion JERNHERERS 20,782 23,544

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental and
other deposits and receivables in relation to Cash
Compensation under the Relocation Arrangement. Where
applicable, an impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by considering the probability of default of
comparable companies with published credit ratings. In the
situation where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted fo reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate fo
receivables for which there was no recent history of default
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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23. Cash and Cash Equivalents

23 . BlE R BLEFED

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175

2021 2020

ZEI-F EIEH

HKS$’000 HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Cash and bank balances B4 KIB1T4E R 166,511 245,729
Non-pledged time deposits with original REBARRIHEAVDR=@EA

maturity of less than three months Z EIRIRERRER
when acquired 212,125 179,420
Cash and cash equivalents HE RIESZEY) 378,636 425,149

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”)
amounted to HK$318,725,000 (2020: HK$393,492,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies; however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are normally made
for varying periods of between approximately one day and
three months on average depending on the immediafe cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ZERABRAE / Annual Report &3k 2021
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24. Trade Payables 24 JEE AT 5 R
An ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables as at the AEENRLEIRREAE R > E B EED
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BEEERAZRE DT -
follows:
2021 2020

—g-—F C"ZT-%
HK$'000  HK$'000

FHET TFET
Within 90 days Q0 HW 31,300 31,883
91 to 180 days 91E180H 740 1,086
181 to 360 days 181 2360 H 560 670
Over 360 days 360 AL E 1,376 1,952

33,976 35,591
The trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally fEH B ZERF L AT R > —fF 30ZE 90

setled on 30 to Q0 days terms. H A% o

25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. 5t BRI X

2021 2020
k- -2 “E°%%
Effective Effective
inferest rate Maturity  HK$'000 inferest rafe Matuity — HK$'000
1S BRI =
(%) )]s TR (%] HERH FEm
Current i{l:t
Bank loans RITEM Hong Kong 2022 47,530 HIBOR+1.45 2021 32,437
— secured - Bigm Interbank EBRTRE
Offered Rate FE+1.45
("HIBOR"}+1.45
FRRTRE
75 +1.45
Bank loans BIER HIBOR+1.80 2022 10,357 HIBOR+1.80 to 2021 69,188
— unsecured — R o e HBOR+1.85
75.+1.80 EERTAERE

+1 80EFEBRN
[FEHfE+1.85

57,887 101,625
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25. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 25. 5t BT =)

(continued)
2021 2020
:g:_ﬁ —7—7&
Effective Fffective
inferest rate Maturity ~ HK$'000 inferest rate Maturty — HK$'000
BRHE BRA=
(%) k) 0] THw (%] 38R TER
Non-current JEEDER
Bank loans RITEN HIBOR+1.45 2023-2024 288,595 HIBOR+1.45 2022-2024 336,124
— secured — BifR BRBTRE HERTEE
8 +1.45 FE+1.45
Bank loans RITEN - - - HIBOR+1.85 2022-2024 26,667
— unsecured — EHR EBRTAZERE
+1.85
288,595 362,791
346,482 464,416
2021 2020
—R--F "2 ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Analysed into: pAR)ig
Bank loans repayable: IRSIEAEEE ZRITEM ¢
Within one year or on demand —FERHIZEREE 57,887 101,625
In the second year BTF 64,757 58,641
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=EFLF (BREEEFE) 223,838 304,150
346,482 464,416
less: Amount classified as current portion B BN ARSIV KR (57,887) (101,625
Amount classified as non-current portion S A3 FENERER DRI BR 288,595 362,791
Notes: MfaE
(a)  The above bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (o) LEHMIBITERUBTEE T8EH
and amounted to HK$346,482,000 (2020: 346,482,0004% w( == & = & &F:
HK$464,416,000). 464,416,000 7T) °
(b]  Cerfain of the Group's bank loans are secured by: b) AEBEBETIRITERZUTHIELR
[)  mortgages over the Group's investment property situated () UREEMNREBNREYENIR
in Hong Kong of HK$91,000,000 (2020: #H491,000000BT(ZE =
HK$86,000,000); and £ 1 86,000,000 7T) ; A
[i)  morgages over the Group's building of HK$2,613,000 i) DAAEE BT R 55 AR LAY AR
(2020: HK$2,714,000) and corresponding rightof-use DEIA2,613,0008T(ZEE
land of HK$12,214,000 (2020: HK$12,685,000), F:2,714,000%8 TE ) 4
respectively. 12, 214 0BT (Z B B4

12,685,000%87T) ©
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26. Other Payables and Accruals

2.6, FLth B 5 55 v B JE itk

2021 2020
—R--F "Z°ZTF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
HtaE F#ET FET
Other payables H AT (a) 89,856 94,096
Accruals FEST=IE 97,170 93,359
Contract liabilities =L (b) 14,642 22,011
201,668 209,466
less: Amount classified as current portion 38 © 5! BN HBER{D RSB (197,221) (204,766)
Amount classified as non-current portion %1/ BNERZRIA UL EE 4,447 4,700
Notes: Wizt :
(a)  The amounts of HK$10,792,000 (2020: HK$7,097,000) o) X"EBREMESKFEMESEDN

included in other payables of the Group were due to related

companies as af 31 December 2021

. These balances were

unsecured, interest-free and repayable in accordance with

normal trading terms (nofe 13(alli)).

Other payables are non-inferestbearing.

(b)  As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, the
contract liabilities included deferred revenue arising from the
loyalty points VIP programme of the Group and short-term
advances received from customers for the sale of goods of

HK$22,01

1,000 and HK$14,642,000, respectively. The

decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was mainly
due to the decrease in shortterm advances received from
customers for the sale of goods and deferred revenue arising
from the loyalty points VIP programme of the Group.
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27. Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

27%@&@

Temporary Withholding
difference faxes on Temporary Tox losses
arising from undistributed ~~ difference of available
the Unrealised profits on impairment, for offsetting
Revaluation Relocation profit of PRC provisions against future
of properfies  Arrangement inventories subsidiaries  and accruals Others  taxable profits Total
10 L)zt
HEMERR BER RRERR
WEsHEE FER R fEstaa it 5
REM ZERES BRER ZEiR ZERES Aft ag it
Hk$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TEn THn TH#n THr THr FH1 TEn THn
At T January 2020 RZE-ZE-E-R 7,841 108,035 (50,394) 38,093 (34,574) 6,982 = 62,619
Deferred fox debied fo equity ~ ERERGIRZ
during the year EIRE 2434 - - - - - - 2434
Deferred fox charged/[crediied] MRS/
fo fhe income siclement (%) 2 BB
duing the year nofe 12) (Hiz12) (1,404) (1.574) 18,087 = (10,018) 28) 4782) 281
Paymen's during fhe year ERRfT = = = [6,854) = (708) = [7,562)
Exchange realignment ERAE 525 6,373 1923 1,859 2653 (469) (284) 3428
At 31 December 2020 RIETZE
+-A=+-A 9,39 113,434 [34,230) 33,098 (47,245 8,187) (5,060) 61,200
A T January 2021 RIET-5-F-H 9,3% 113,434 (34,230) 33,098 (47,245) (8,187) (5,066) 61,200
Deferied fox debied fo equily ~ EREBETIRZ
duing the year A 3,498 - - - - - - 3,498
Deferred fox charged /[crediied] £ M RINER/
fo the income siafement (%) Z BB
during the year fnole 12] W12 (482) (1,656) 4,250 1,259 (1,393) 8,719 (95) 602
Paymen's during fhe year ERZA - - - (10,782) - (758) - (11,540)
Exchange realignment EQEE 266 2,746 (783) 692 (1,055) (93) (125) 1,646
31 December 2021 s
+-A=+-H 12,678 114,524 (30,763) 24,267 (59,693) (321) (5,286) 55,406
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27. Deferred Tax (continved)

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

Group for financial reporting purposes: MEERDAT -
2021 2020
—EC-F —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Deferred tax assets recognised in the AR B AT ARRFESS
consolidated statement of financial position MEESE (72,107) (71,255)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the ARSI R MESE Z IR
consolidated statement of financial position wIEaE 127,513 132,455
55,406 61,200

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$423,079,000 (2020: HK$410,095,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
faxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has tax losses arising in Macau of
HK$3,107,000 (2020: HK$2,905,000) that will expire in
three years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
fax assefs have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in the Company and subsidiaries that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to eamings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax freaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be
distributed by those subsidiaries esfablished in Mainland China
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the
directors have made assessment based on the factors which
included dividend policy and the level of capital and working
capital required for the Group's operation in the foreseeable
future.
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27. Deferred Tax (continved)

At 31 December 2021, the aggregate withholding fax amount
arising from the temporary differences associated with these
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised fotalled approximately

HK$39,687,000 (2020: HK$38,644,000).

There are no income tax consequences atfaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

(Continued)
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28. Share Capital
28. A
2021 2020
g ZZTHF
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised: ERE -
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 R =i mEE
HK$0.01 each 0.01 BroclyE @Ak 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITARERE !
422,416,638 (2020: 422,416,638 422 416,638 (ZE"FF
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 422,416,638 %) B EE
0.01 BHEER 4,224 4,224

29. Reserves

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

The confributed surplus of the Group represents (i) the excess of
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation of certain members of the Group
which took place on 31 December 1992, over the nominal
value of issued shares of Embry Group Limited ("EGL") in
exchange therefor; (i) the premium arising from the shares
issued by EGL for setlement of the amount due to the ultimate
holding company of HK$15,841,000; (iii] the premium
arising from the acquisition of Embry (H.K.) Limited (“Embry
HK") from the non-controlling interests of HK$5,000,000; and
(iv) the excess of the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant fo the group reorganisation,
over the nominal value of the share capital of the Company
issued in exchange therefor and the then existing 10,000,000
shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid at par.
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29. i =)

29. Reserves (continved)

In accordance with the relevant regulations applicable in the
PRC, subsidiaries of the Company esfablished in the PRC are
required fo fransfer a cerfain percentage of their profits affer
fax, if any, fo the enterprise expansion and stafutory reserve
funds, which are non-distributable, before profit distributions to
shareholders. The amounts of the transfers are subject fo the
approval of the boards of directors of these subsidiaries.

The Group applied the fransitional provision of HKFRS 3 which
permits goodwill in respect of acquisitions which occurred
prior fo 1 January 2001, to remain eliminated against the
consolidated reserves. The amount of goodwill remaining in
consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2001, was stated af cost,
which amounted to HK$3,168,000 (2020: HK$3,168,000)
as at 31 December 2021.

30. Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 28
May 2020 (the "Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations.

Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (i)
any employee (whether full time or part time, including
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of the
Company, ifs subsidiaries or invested entity; (ii] any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) of the Company, its subsidiaries or invested entity; (iii)
any supplier or customer of the Group or any invested entfity;
(iv) any person or entity that provides research, development or
ofher technological support to the Group or any invested entity;
and (v) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any invested entity. The Share Option
Scheme became effective on 28 May 2020 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for a
period of fen years to 27 May 2030.
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any fime. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders” approval in a general meeting.
Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associafes, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant] in excess of HK$5,000,000,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is deferminable by the
directors, which period may commence from the date of the
offer of the share options, and ends on a dafe which is not
later than ten years from the date of the offer of the share
options or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, if
earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is deferminable by the
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares as quoted on daily quotations
sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ““Stock
Exchange”’) on the date of the offer of the share opfions; [ii)
the average closing prices of the Company’s shares as quoted
on the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
frading days immediately preceding the date of offer; and {iii
the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Embry Holdings Limited Z#175 R ARAT / Annual Report R 2021

(Continued)

30. 1 B B )

BBReEEtE (8)

AT AR A AR A 51 81 R A 2= BT (T E th
BRI ST 2 B4 B M R AT R BB AR AT
TR A4S > TISBIBAA TS
RIE D BT AR 30% o FITEAR LB
EHEAERSRERHBRETHER
2 WM A+ B A BRI ST AR A A A
AR E 4TI D 1% AR o LB
L BRI T 458 L B R A2 > A BB BRI B A
T EB SRR c AXATEE 1T
BAaE ok BRI AR EHEAET
BERLHE > WERAATBIIENTESS
SHUERS > HEES o

SN EER+ @R HREA > mARE

ERFABIIIFATEFHEAREZ
BMBARDEAERE  BEXTATEM
RENBEZEITRG0.1% Kk (IREBEAAER
MREHBENETESS) BE8B
5,000,000# 7T > AIZRERRETIKRER
REHE > HEIEE ©

AR AP B2 IR B 1 H #HE 5T 28
AR RBIAE 1 BlURmE RS
It o BREITEHIREFEE » &
BN EERERZRHAAESEEBR
BEZRREE QRS A DR+ FEaER
stEEmz BLE (UBRFEERE)

ERETEETRESETS  EAFER
THRSE (| AR B RPN EZERLHE
REZEHESBHMEAFBRASE (T
RFT)) S HRERFIRBUEHEE ; (i) 4
NERMRBIZEERHE R Z A AER
5 BIEMRR TS HRERRNFHEIWS
1B ; Kli)| S ABRPHEE o



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

W 15 2 Bt at ()

31 December 2021 —E_—&+_"_A=+—H

30. 1 B B )
BB EEtE (&

BRETER A ARBR SRR
RE LIRTZHVER]

30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vofe at shareholders” meetings.

UTEINR T —F+"A=+—H%
IRt BIIR T i RITERIMEARAE ¢

Sef out below are the outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2021

Number of share options
RRESE
A Granted Cancelled Exercised A Exercise price of
1 January during during during 31 December  Date of grant of Exercise period of share options
Name or category of parficipant 2021 the year the year the year 2021 share options share opfions® HKS per share!!
RZ=-F RZ=-F R R
SHEHENER -B-A ERiRY ERIH NG +2AZ1-A BRERLAM FRlRHEmES Bl
Executive directors HrEs
M. Cheng Mon Tai BEEEE 1,430,000 - - - 1,430,000 30 December 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 1.02
2 o= ) 29 December 2025
ZZC-FTR=1HE
“ECRETCACTAA
Ms. Cheng Pk Holiza EES e 1,220,000 - - - 1,220,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 1.02
“ZTEEtCAS1R 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+ZR=tHE
“ECRFtCACINA
Madom Ngok Ming Chu ERGYT 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 30 Decerber 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
S :2) p=E l) 29 December 2025
ZEC-FTR=1HE
“ETRETCACTAA
M. Cheng Chuen Chuen gEcgs 295,000 - - - 295,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 fo 1.02
ZZTEEtCASHR 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+ZR=1HE
“ECRFTCACNA
Ms. Ly Qua EEGT 665,000 - - - 665,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
I s 29 December 2025
ZZC-FTR=1HE
ZETRETCACTAA
Independent non-execufive directors B EHTES
Mr. Lou Siu Ki QpEE 100,000 - - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 102
ZZTRECASTH 29 December 2025
ZEC-FTR=1HE
“ECRETCACTAA
M. Lee Kwan Hung FERE 100,000 - - - 100,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
“ZTEEtCASTR 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+IR=1HE
ZECRFTCACNA
Prof. lee TS SREHE 100,000 - - - 100,000 30 Decerber 2020 30 Decernber 2021 to 1.02
ZZIRECAS1H 29 December 2025
ZEC-FTR=1HE
ZECRETCACTAA
Associate of directors and EERTEREN
substantial shareholders HEA
Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan® FEggto 185,000 - - - 185,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
“TTEEtCASHR 29 December 2025
ZBC-F+ZR=1HE
“ECRFtCACNA
Other employees HitifES
In aggregate st 14,605,000 - (1,275,000 - 13,330,000 30 December 2020 30 December 2021 o 102
TTTRELTAS1H 29 December 2025
ZEC-F2R=1HE
Z2CREHZRZTAA
20,000,000 - (1,275,000) - 18725000
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved)

Share Option Scheme (continued)
Notes:

(1) The closing price of the shares of the Company immediately
before the date of grant of the share options was HK$1.00.

(2)  Share options granted under the Share Option Scheme shall
vest in the granfees in accordance with the timefable below:

—  30% of such options were vested on 30 December
2021 with an exercise period from 30 December 2021
to 29 December 2025:

—  30% of such options were vested on 30 December
2022 with an exercise period from 30 December 2022
to 29 December 2025; and

—  the remaining 40% of such options were vested on 30
December 2023 with an exercise period from 30
December 2023 to 29 December 2025.

(3)  Ms. Cheng Tsz Kwan is the Senior Sales and Marketing
Manager and granddaughter of Mr. Cheng Man Tai and
Madam Ngok Ming Chu.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2020 was HK$3,888,000 (HK$0.19
each), of which the Company recognised a share option
expense of HK$2,124,000 (2020: HK$12,000) during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The fair value of the equity-settled share options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2020, was estimated as af the
date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the
ferms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

Dividend yield (%) 3.00
Expected volatility (%) 29.08
Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.495
Expected life of options (years) 5
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 1.02
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30. Share Option Scheme (continved 30. IS RESHS ()

Share Option Scheme (continued)

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome. The exit rate is based on
the historical data on staff /director turnover rates.

No other feature of the share options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share

FictEsE (2
TastEIRIbRE J_EE/&’TFEHELX?E/‘I’*X%
—J“ BRVEERGERBR o BEREZE
BEMNET BERLREARKE -

EStEAFERBEMNAMRERENE
ukSE

LU ENBRESBIIE N ERITENE

Option Scheme during the year: RS :
2021 2020
—E-—F TEIEF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
price price
T NS
1TEE T1HEE
HKS Number HK$ Number
per share of options per share of options
SikET BREHE gRET BREHE
1 January *—HB—H 1.02 20,000,000 - -
Cranted during the year FRRE - - 1.02 20,000,000
Cancelled during to the year £ JELH 1.02 (1,275,000) - -
At 31 December R+-B=+—H 1.02 18,725,000 1.02 20,000,000

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
18,725,000 share options outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of share optfions would,
under the present capital sfructure of the Company, result in
18,725,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of approximately

issue of

HK$187,000 and share premium account of approximately
HK$18,913,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 18,725,000 share options outstanding under
the Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately
4.43% of the Company’s shares in issue as af that dafe.
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31. Commitments 319K
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RIREHABIAEEH » ZEB ZAEUWT

following commitments:

2021 2020
—g-—5 —=-3&
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET
Confracted for commitments in respect of the  BEBEY% - MERREHZ
acquisition of property, plant and equipment  BET4I& 117,764 117,213
32. Contingent Liabilities 32. A f1
At the end of the reporting period, confingent liabilities not PRERERR » MBRERPULESIEEEZ
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: SABEWMT
2021 2020
—g_-F "EZT_TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank guarantees given in lieu of property AREYEBERES R ALK
rental deposits and ufility deposits &t > SR1TIER 184 751

33. Notes to the Consolidated Statement  33.%: S W& w LM GE

of Cash Flows

(a) During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to (0) FR> AEEMMEREHEEL
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of TjFE’]@ﬁﬁEﬁE&%ﬁ E\Fglﬁﬁi
HK$67,545,000 (2020: HK$49,030,000) and RED R A67,545,0008 77T (=
HK$67,012,000 (2020: HK$48,765,000), T 149,030,000/ 7T ) EZ
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for ()70 20008 T(ZE 2 &
properties and stores. 48,765,000 7T) °
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33. Notes to the Consolidated Statement 33.5: 88K BE N @
of Cash Flows (continved)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (h) RMEEBELXEBEH
Interest-
lease  bearing bank
liabilities borrowings

HE&E StRIRTTEM
HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET
1 January 2020 RN_E-EFF—F—H 159,110 558,180
Changes from financing cash flows MBIHS RE8E) (98,600) (108,613)
New leases mEE 48,765 -
Termination of leases KRIEHE (18,018) -
Interest expenses FEREX 5,087 14,849
Covid-19-related rent concessions ELEANIRMEE Covid 19%15B
from lessors HEENEEER (8,590) -
Exchange realignment PE R R 4,786 =
At 31 December 2020 and RN_E-EF+"F=+—H
1 January 2021 M —%—HF—H 93,440 464,416
Changes from financing cash flows MBIHE RE8E) (82,800) (124,127)
New leases HEE 67,012 -
Termination of leases BIFRE (3,929) -
Interest expenses FERL 4,018 6,193
Covid-19-related rent concessions ELHANIRMEE Covid 19%15B
from lessors HENEEER (818) -
Exchange realignment bE R FEEE 1,942 -
At 31 December 2021 A TET—F+-/=+—H 78,865 346,482
(c) Total cash outflow for leases () FERERLEEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement SARENERNWEEREREHE
of cash flows is as follows: EBENE -
2021 2020
—g-—F "ZT°ZTHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#5T FBT
Within operating activities KEEEN 306,823 272,353
Within financing activities EREIN 82,800 98,600

389,623 370,953
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34. Financial Instruments by Category

34500 7 B 2 S T H

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RREHIREE AR ESR T ENREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: wnwF:
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at
amortised cost
FsH At EZ
EMEE
2021 2020
—R-—F T"EZZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade receivables FEW & 5 BR R 51,943 67,060
Financial assets included in prepayments, AT N ek
deposits and other receivables HEWRIE SR B E 27,976 36,168
Cash and cash equivalents B RIS EY) 378,636 425,149
458,555 528,377
Financial liabilities E A h=L ]
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
FBsH At EZ
=Mas
2021 2020
—R-—F “"=Z°ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Inferestbearing bank borrowings sHEIRITER 346,482 464,416
lease liabilities HE&E 78,865 93,440
Trade payables FET 8 5 8RR 33,976 35,591
Financial liabilities included in other B EEREMENRIER
payables and accruals Stz B E 114,662 109,900
573,985 703,347
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash,
short term deposits and interestbearing bank borrowings. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
frade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Cash flow inferest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value
and cash flow interest rate risks. The Group's exposure to
market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's bank borrowings with floating inferest rates.

At present, the Group does nof infend to hedge ifs exposure fo
interest rate fluctuations. However, the Group will constantly
review the economic situation and its interest rate risk profile,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in future as
may be necessary.

At 31 December 2021, the profit before tax of the Group
would have been decreased/increased by approximately
HK$1,732,000 (2020: HK$2,322,000) if the interest rate
had been increased/decreased by 50 basis points with all
other variables held constant.

Annual Report %R 2021 / Embry Holdings Limited %]
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ReRENEARAERTARRRSR
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RN AR AT ERRERENEAR - &
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A FF BRI EAORITEAAR o

BT > NEEEEHIPFTARZ IR
B o 2AM > ANEERE ARE LB
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Bt iE RV hE o

HFIZE EF RSO ERL > MATAEMEA
EREAE RIE—F+H=1+—
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Foreign currency risk

The Group carries on its sale and purchase fransactions mainly
in Hong Kong dollars and RMB. The Group does nof use
derivative financial instruments to protect against the volatility
associated with foreign currency fransactions and other
financial assets and liabilities created in the ordinary course of
business. However, as the Group's net profit/(loss) is reported
in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a franslation gain as a
result of the RMB appreciation, and vice versa. The majority of
the Group's operating assets are located in Mainland China
and are denominated in RMB.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of
the Group's profit before tax (due fo changes in the fair value
of monetary assefs and liabilifies).

S EE B B3
AEBFEUBIRARBKETEER
5 o AEBUEUTTEEM T AREHH
BERBREZIINERZ REMEMEEK
BEFAMTE 2 KE) o A > ARAEEZ
4R, (B518) LUBTTEY) » SMAREFHE
B ASRE R ° RZTNR o AER A
HIREBEEIUNPREARE > WAARE
FIR o

TRIRNREPEEER > EPABEEAM

FE#RRMEFAENBERT » SEENR
A B A REERAISEHIESEEE 2
FRE (HNERBEERERNATEE
) o

Embry Holdings Limited 2]

2021

I Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB

2020

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB
I Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in RMB rate in profit
AR before tax
EELHA RanEF
(FEA)  #&hn GRiZL)
% HK$'000
FAET
—E-—F
AT ARKRE 5 465
B TR AREE (5) (465)
TEIERF
WA TREARKERE 5 (68)
WA TR AREHE (5) 68
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)
Credit risk

The Group frades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group's policy that all customers who wish
to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. Each of the
customers has been attached with a trading limit and any
excess of the limit must be approved by the general manager
of the operation unit. Under the tight control of the credit terms
and detailed assessment of the creditworthiness of individual
cusfomers, the Group's exposure to bad debts is maintained af
minimal.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure fo credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end sfaging classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presemed are gross carrying amounts for financial
assefs.

As at 31 December 2021

12-month
ECLs
1218 R Fa4H
586518

EERR
FEBEENZREERFNERETR
7 o REBEFEENEER  FAARUEE
ERETRZHNERIIRKIBEERER
FF o lb5h » ZEETFREERZ BRI
BiEiR e FEEHSRRERRUEZIR
38 BUHIRBEZHW ARSI ZEEU A
ACIEHEE - AN AEERIEEER > A
HERE R ZEEFFRTL > WEAER
ZIRAR A SRR o

RARBRELDH
TRETENRTEEREERRNEEER
ReREERE  ZEEBREBZER
+TZR=+—HEEARER (FRIEEM
ERBAMH T ERIRAE SRR E
B) UIRFERDEADE -

2IEEATHEENIREEE -

W-—E-—%+-A=+—8H

Stage 1
LRl
HK$'000

FET

Lifetime ECLs
2FRBEREE
Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
B2RE I fifErE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

FEWE ZERTn -
SARATIE BER
HitEUREIER
other receivables FRHEE
— Normal** — [Eg** 27,976

Trade receivables*
Financial assefs included in
prepayments, deposits and

Cash and cash equivalents RERREZEY
— Not yet past due — kB 378,636

- - 57,552 57,552

- - - 27,976

- - - 378,636

406,612

57,552 464,164
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Objectives and Policies (continved)
Credit risk (continued) EERMRE &
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) %kﬂﬂﬁ&ﬁ,‘?&ﬁﬂﬂ (4)
As at 31 December 2020 —E-EF+-HA=1+—H
12-month
ECls lifetime ECls
1218R T
EEE#E 2ENEERE
Simplified
Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Tofal
2108 B2RE ERY SN oy 4t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TET FE7T FET FET FETT

Trade receivables* ) - - = 71,690 71,690
Financial assefs included in SABMRIE  BERk
prepayments, deposits and HthfeURIER
other receivables SHBE
— Normal** — FE 36,168 - - = 36,168
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBLZEY
— Not yef past due — [RIRIEER 425149 - - - 425,149
461,317 = = 71,690 533,007
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * MAEERASCRER EREKRE S
approach for impairment, information based on the provision SRS > BN EEEENE R
matrix is disclosed in note 21 fo the financial statements. HRARMIEE 21 42 5E o
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in O ETATENRUR  BEREMBUGRIER
prepayments, deposits and other receivables is considered to TMEENEEEREARAETES
be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no BRBEtMEEBVRRIEEERR
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant BARBIEINMERRS TER - BRI > £
increase in credif risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the MEENEEER=EGEA Rk ©
credit quality of the financial assets is considered fo be
"doubiful”.
Liquidity risk MENE R
liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to meet all REEw ERIEREDRSE 2 UEARE
contractual financial commitments as they fall due. The Group's M2 OB EE - AEBEZBRER
objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy, to R SRMBUR - BERMRIREERER
monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a MBERLE > WRFESE RS > 5
contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group REEEAFRHREUECTE RSB ER
maintains sufficient cash to meet ifs liquidity requirement. TR
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35. Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies (continved)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group continued fo enjoy adequate cash position with cash
and cash equivalents amounting to HK$378,636,000 (2020:
HK$425,149,000) as at 31 December 2021. The Group
financed its operations and investment activities by infernally
generated cash flows and bank borrowings. The maturity profile
of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the contraciual undiscounted payments, was as

35

SV 55 B PR H B B BUOR ()

REBEEAR @)
R_E-_—F+"B=1+—H » x&EEE
,‘a}zﬁ*ﬁ‘?ﬁﬁfﬁézﬁa‘ﬂkﬂ HIBE IR
B4 378,636,000 (ZE_E
¢.425, 49 00087T) - ZEEB BN
HEEZIRESRRIBITER > BEEHEK
KRETHREES - PREPBEER >
AEBIRBENRBIRNTGTEZ S/ME

follows: BEEHEWT -
Within
1 year or Over
ondemand 1o 5 years 5 years Total
—FRH
BEREE —ERF BiBRF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr FAET FET
2021 —E--F
Inferestbearing bank borrowings stEIR1TERR 62,315 295,340 - 357,655
lease liabilities HEaE 52,747 31,388 1,688 85,823
Trade payables FENEB SRS 33,976 - - 33,976
Other payables and accruals HAhE (2B R e+ EhE 110,215 4,447 - 114,662
259,253 331,175 1,688 592,116
2020 —ECEH
Inferestbearing bank borrowings* st EIRITESR > 107,892 374,625 - 482,517
lease liabilities HEaE 64,772 31,180 2,826 98,778
Trade payables FE(TE 7R 35,591 - - 35,591
Other payables and accruals HhEN IR ERIEIE 105,200 4,700 - 109,900
313,455 410,505 2,826 726,786
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35. Financial Risk Management

176

Objectives and Policies (continved)

hqmdnyrmk(connnued}
At 31 December 2020, included in interest-bearing bank
borrowings were ferm loans. The loan agreements confained a
repayment on-demand clause giving the bank the unconditional
right to call in the loan at any time and therefore, for the purpose
of the above maturity profile, the total amount was classified as “on
demand”. Notwithstanding the above clause, the direcfors did not
believe that the loans would be called in its entirety within 12
months, and they considered that the loans would be repaid in
accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan
agreements. This evaluation was made considering the financial
position of the Group, the Group's compliance with the loan
covenants, the lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group
had made all previously scheduled repayments on time. In
accordance with the ferms of the Group's loans, the maturity terms
at 31 December 2020 were: HK$97,458,000 payable within
one year; and HK$385,059,000 payable in the second fo fifth
years, inclusive.

The Group s also exposed to liquidity risk through the granting
of financial guarantees, further defails of which are disclosed
in note 32 fo the financial statements.

Capital management

The Group manages ifs capital to ensure that the Group will
be able to confinue as a going concem while maximising the
refurn to the owners through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance where appropriate. No change was made in

the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt which
includes bank borrowings and equity aftributable to owners of
the Company. Equity affributable to owners of the Company
comprises issued share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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35. Financial Risk Management 35. 1055 b PR H BB BUR @)
Objectives and Policies (continved)
Capital management (continued) BEXEE &
The Company monitors capital using a gearing rafio, which is KA BIBEESBELEEZE (BR1TE
total bank borrowings divided by the equity aftributable to HUBTER U RN T ER A FE{L IR RE) BS i
owners of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of BA - RIREHREESB/LERNT ¢
the reporting periods were as follows:
2021 2020
—F—§ —IZTTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT
Inferestbearing bank borrowings =B TE=R 346,482 464,416
Equity affributable to owners RATEE NELED
of the Company 2,516,273 2,488,389
Gearing ratio BESBLEX 13.8% 18.7%
36. Statement of Financial Position of 36. 4 2] B DL
the Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the RATEREHARP BRI T
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F "ZT°ZF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEREEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI YNSIPZ e 924,823 949,560
CURRENT ASSETS mEEE
Prepayments RIIR 275 47
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIESZEY) 213 211
Total current assets MEEEARE 488 258
CURRENT LIABILITIES bk =R
Other payables and accruals HEIRIE R E s TIE 2,757 2,789
Net current liabilities mEEERE (2,269) (2,531)
Net assets BEFE 922,554 Q47,029
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 4,224 4,224
Reserves (Note) 15 (Iat) 918,330 942,805
Total equity 4Bt T 922,554 947,029
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36. Statement of Financial Position of 36. A 2] M BRI @
the Company (continved)
Note: M=t
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AT EERBUNT
Share
premium  Confributed  Share option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
RRin aERR BARR TR AR REER Hzt
Nofe HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FHT FH1 FH1 FH71 FET
At 1 January 2020 RZZ2Z5F—F—H 386,512 381,248 = 187,277 955,037
Profit for the year and fofal FERARER
comprehensive expense for the year EEYLE = = = 428 428
Equitysefiled share opfion arangements — REAE REERIERHE = = 12 = 12
19 final dividend declared and paid BRI —E—NEFFRE 14 = - - [12,672) (12,672)
At 31 December 2020 RZB_BE+_A=+-H
and 1 Jonuary 2021 k=Z2-—%—A—H 386,512 381,248 12 175,033 942,805
Loss for the year and fofal FEFERFERERTAE
comprehensive expenses for the year - - - (7,591) (7,591)
Equitysetled share option amangements IR BB IRIEL B - - 2,124 - 2124
2020 final dividend declored and paid ~ EETRKIKT—E_ZERHRE 14 - - - (10,560) (10,560)
2021 interim dividend "R FHERS 14 - - - (8,448) (8,448)
At 31 Decerber 2021 KB —+-A=+—B 386,512 381,248 2136 148434 918,330

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
then net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant
to the group reorganisation, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor and the then
existing 10,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid
at par. Under the Companies Act of the Cayman lslands, the share
premium and contributed surplus may be distributed to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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37.Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 37,3 B8 2 n) &k

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as AATTEWBATHZEBFNOT :
follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
registration and fully paid share/ equity attributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activities
B4 AT BRTRERE
%8 MR EEES RefREEE FATELEET AL TEER
2021 2020
BT TR
Embry Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Invesiment holding
ZHBEMNBRAS B 10077 BEEK
Embry (Changzhou) Gaments Lid. PRC/ RMB176,200,000 100 100 Manufacture of ladies’ brassieres,
("Embry CZ"|** Mainland China  AR#176,200,00075 panties,swimwear and sleepwear
ZHE (BM) REBRAF HEl/HEIARE and property investment
(T=FIFS M) ** g RE
W AR ER R E
Embry SZ** PRC/ HK$ 11,000,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
SRS I Mainland China 11,000,000787% swimwear and sleepwear
BT ARE BELMME - g ATRRER
Embry HK Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$45,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
ZHAEEHR &%  *Nonvofing deferred swimwear and sleepwear and
HK$4,500,000 property investment
Ei@fk 45,0008 7T BEELHE - A
* R ZRRIER ARREREAERE
4,500,000%5%
Embry (Macau) Fashion Company Macau MOP100,000 100 100 Trading of ladies’ brassieres, panties,
Limited [Embry (Macau) pil 100,0008F5#& swimwear and sleepwear
Pronto A Vestir, Limitada) BEZEHE - A
ZH15 (/P BEARAR IR R B
Embry (Shandong) Garments PRC/ US$28,000,000 100 100 Monufacture and frading of
Limited ("Embry SD”D** Mainland China 28,000,000t lodies’ brassieres, panties,
2% (L) REAIRY R,/ FEIARE swimwear and sleepwear
(TZ#HB L) ** HEREETERE
POfE XK BER
Embry (Shanghai) Company PRC/ HK$238,000,000 100 100 Design, research and development
Limited ["Embry SH')** Mainland China 238,000,000 and frading of ladies' brassieres,
L5 (L78) BRAT e,/ RE AR panties, swimwear and sleepwear
(25075 L&) ** and property investment

Rt A% BEREELME
ME ~ miE R RRERRERE

Embry Garments Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Invesiment holding
EEEZHE 1% RELR
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37. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
(continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows: [continued)

37. RIS AR M =)

AAREBHBATRIBNT : (&

Place of
incorporation/ Issued and Percentage of
regisiration and fully paid share/ equity atiributable
Name business registered capital to the Company Principal activifies
i ATYg BRITRER
1] SR RATEES &ip/MES HATEISREE AL TEEH
2021 2020
- e 223
EGL BV US$472 100 100 Investment holding
HERLHEE 472%7 REZER
Embry Inferational Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Invesiment holding
BRI B ERARAR HERUHE [ESH REER
Gallin Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
HFEREBRAT EA 2B REZER
Whistleblower Limited BVI US$1 100 100 Holding of frademarks
HEEYEE [ESH REBE
* The non~oting deferred shares carry no rights fo dividends (other than X RN R AR R
for any financial year during which the net profit of Embry HK (3¢ 22 51 75 & & 0] 11k B B9 #4 FI| {8 18
available for dividend exceeds HK$ 1,000,000,000,000), no rights 1,000,000,000,000 7 7z A9 1F 1a] B1 L 45
fo vote at general meefings and no rights fo receive any surplus in EBRSN) ~ IIRERA & LR E RS HREF
return of capital in a winding-up in respect of the first WEYE 500,000,000,000,000 # 7 4R[5]
HK$500,000,000,000,000. BRBIEI R R ©
** Embry CZ, Embry SZ, Embry SD and Embry SH are registered as o RFEEIN S ZF SR ZF LR
whollyforeign-owned enterprises under the PRC law. Je ZFH 5 LGRS P EE B 42
SFEEE o
Except for EGL, all of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held PREGLYN » LiiFRBEWE ATIHAAT
by the Company. BHERA °
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, ERFINERFMBAR > EFRAEF
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results MBARETEZERFEXENEMAE
for the year or formed a subsfantial portion of the net assefs of EEEFENTESD o %%uﬁj ?IET,\
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the Hiti @A SN ERERERE
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
38. Approval of the Financial Statements 383t ffi: I 55 i #¢

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2022.
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